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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

ERBMEXZHMABRLT ([BXA]) GEM([GEM ) 2% &

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be
more susceptible to high market volatility than securities
traded on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no
assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in
the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any
part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Shanxi Changcheng
Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the “Company”) collectively
and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and
belief the information contained in this report is accurate
and complete in all material respects and not misleading
or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission
of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHREFE

During the year under review, the Group continued to  REEEEE RNEBEBIULEEGR L
be principally engaged in design, research, development, Q&I MR FR LEREEAR
manufacture, and sale of image transmission fibre optic FTEHEE-

products.

The Group reported turnover of approximately ®HE-_ZT—+F+-_A=+—HILEE"

RMB19,121,000 and recorded loss after tax of approximately AEE 7HRESETEHARY19,121,000

RMB28,576,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017. T UEBESHRMEBENHNARE
28,576,0007T °

On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to express my — AAZEREXEZ=S R ORH TIEABRTE
sincere gratitude to our staff members for their contribution ZER TRHBRERIEEESH MO
and extend my appreciation to the shareholders and investors o

for their support.

Guo Xu Zhi =&

Chairman B

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC, RS KRT

28 August 2018 —E-NENA=ZF+NH
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Business Review

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission optic products. A subsidiary of the Company
continued to be engaged in wholesale of household water
purifiers. The newly registered two subsidiaries in the year of
2016 have not been commencement of business.

Image transmission fibre optics products manufactured by the
Company are image transmission devices containing a rigidly
bundle of optical fibres arranged in an ordered fashion so that
images can be transmitted from one end of the optical fibre
bundle and displayed on the other end of the bundle. A typical
image transmission fibre optic product of the Company would
consist of over 10 million optical fibres.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
currently produces five major products, including fibre optic
inverters, fibre optic straight plates, fibre optic face plates,
fibre optic tapers and microchannel plates.

Details of the total sales to external customers by product and
the percentage of total revenue by product for the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2016 are set out in notes 8 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial Review

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately RMB19,121,000 (2016: RMB18,731,000),
representing an increase of approximately 2% as compared to
that of the last year.

Cost of sales of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately RMB15,457,000 (2016:
RMB14,243,000), representing an increase of approximately
9% as compared to that of the last year.

The gross profit margin of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was 19% (2016: 24%).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative expenses of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 was approximately RMB21,601,000 (2016:
RMB13,158,000), representing an increase of approximately
RMB8,443,000 as compared to that of the last year. As the
Group reduced production scale during the year ended 31
December 2017, certain amount of labor costs (including
pension scheme contributions and welfare expenses) are
charged to the profit and loss as administrative expenses
instead of the cost of inventories as manufacturing costs.
Hence, the labor and staff costs included in the administrative
expenses during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
increased by approximately RMB6,028,000 as compared to
that of the last year.

Other operating expenses of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2017 was approximately RMB6,761,000 (2016:
RMB22,665,000), representing a decrease of approximately
RMB15,904,000. The decrease was mainly attributable by
the decrease in the impairment of inventories. As customers’
requirement on the product quality has been increasing and
there were sales return from time to time in recent years,
the Group assesses the value of inventories at the end of
each reporting period. The Group assessed the value of
inventories as at 31 December 2017 and made an impairment
in the amount of approximately RMB6,215,000 (2016:
RMB19,735,000). The impairment amounts mainly includes
those (i) finished goods with aging are over one-year and they
are considered slow-moving items; (ii) finished goods returned
by customers due to failed quality and they are no longer to
be used for reproduction; and (iii) work in progress with aging
are over one-year and they are produced for specific type of
products with no alternative usage. In addition, the Group
implemented measures to improve its production process in
order to enhancing the quality of its products and meeting
customers’ requirement on the product quality during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

The Group reported finance costs amounting to approximately
RMB3,173,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
RMB3,158,000), representing an increase of approximately
RMB15,000 as compared to that of the last year. The finance
costs for the year ended 31 December 2017 comprises interest
on bank loan approximately RMB1,479,000; interest on loans
from shareholders approximately RMB540,000, interest on
loans from connected persons approximately RMB8,000,
interest on other loans approximately RMB1,090,000 and
interest on discounted bills approximately RMB56,000.

The loss after tax for the year ended 31 December 2017
of the Group was approximately RMB28,576,000 (2016:
RMB33,602,000).

Going Concern

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s current liabilities
exceeded its current assets by approximately RMB86,262,000.
In addition, as at 31 December 2017, the Group had
an outstanding bank borrowing, loans from connected
persons and other borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB13,479,000, RMB712,000 and RMB19,269,000
respectively, which would be due for repayment within the
next twelve months; and loans from shareholders amounting
to approximately RMB13,780,000 which is repayment on
demand. These conditions indicate the existence of a material
uncertainty that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern and therefore the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in
the normal course of business.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

To address the issue of going concern, the directors of the
Company have taken/will take the following steps:

continue to negotiate with the Company’s banker for
renewal of the bank loan;

—  strengthen the management of overdue trade receivable;

- implement measures to improve gross profit margin of
the Group’s products;

- reduce production scale in line with sale results;
—  implement stringent cost control measures;

- consider to issue domestic shares and/or other fund
raising measures; and

—  consider seeking further financial assistance from its
shareholders, if appropriate.

The Group has been proactively seeking to raise funds and
taking measures to strengthen its financial position during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The Group will continue
to negotiate with potential investors (including the existing
shareholders) the possibilities of raising funds to the Group in
order to address the going concern issue of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Financial Assistance from Taiyuan Changcheng,
Beijing Gensir, and Connected Persons, and Connected
Transactions

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Corporation
("Taiyuan Changcheng”) since the late of 2011. As at 31
December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 31
December 2017, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was RMB500,000, RMB12,400,000, RMB14,400,000,
RMB14,400,000, RMB14,400,000, RMB 16,490,070 (including
interest portion RMB2,090,070), and approximately
RMB13,327,000 (including interest portion approximately
RMB2,627,000) respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2017, Tiayuan Changcheng provided further
financial assistance of RMB1,300,000, which are secured
by certain plant and machinery and motor vehicles of the
Company, to the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of the pledged plant and machinery and
motor vehicles was approximately RMB1,417,000 and RMB Nil
respectively.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir
Venture Capital Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir"”)
during the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2017, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was RMB454,000
(including interest portion approximately RMB4,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from two connected
persons (“Connected Persons”) during the year ended
31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the amount
due to Connected Persons was amounting to approximately
RMB712,000 (including interest portion approximately
RMB8,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB537,000, RMB4,000 and RMB8,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

BARRH tRFE REEATHH
BEBRBEERS

BT ——FFRE AEEBRKREH
KEFIERF ([KERHE]) EGYKE
PHeor=—T—F —ZF——-F - ZF—=
F_E—OFE - —FT—RHF _FT—RX
F RZZE—+F+ZA=1+—0" ENMK
REMRIES R A ARK500,000T AR
#12,400,0007T * A K #14,400,0007T *
A R #14,400,0007T * A R #14,400,000
7T AR#16,490,0707T (B EF B AR
2,090,0707T) * &%) A R #13,327,0007T
(BEFMEHARE2,627,0000T)  HE
—E—+F+_A=Z+—HLEFE KR
ERAAARRBE—THBEPAREK
1,300,000 T3 F A2 Bl A T 88 K i s &
HEERB R -_E—+E+ A =+—
H - BERz#EREERAENERAEBES
R4 ANREE1,417,000 L R AREZ T -

AEEREZE-_T—tF+_A=+—8
FFEHRNALRT 2RI EREEERR
ANE ([ mFPB])ESHEE R _F
—+F+_A=+—8  EfdmFEK
H#) A RE454,00070 (BEFEHARE
4,0007T) °

AEBRHEZEZE-_T—tF+-_A=+—H
IFFEHRnE —ZEEALT ([BEEAL])
ESBEE) R E—t+F+_A=1—
B EMABEEALRBELHARET12,0007T
(BEFE% ARS,0007T) °

HE - Z—+F+-_A=+—HBIFE K
REW - bR E R RS A T IELF B AR R
DRl A% AR #537,0007T A K #4,000
TR ARKES 000 - ARBEERE X
FRE - b A2 R E A T URELH F B
FE—RBAEGKTBET - FHEEBNM
MERTHRPETHEIZHTE -



Management Discussion and Analysis

Bank and Other Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had an outstanding
bank borrowing amounting to approximately RMB13,479,000
(2016: RMB13,920,000) which was expired in November 2016
and was not repaid. The bank borrowing is now repayable on
demand. The bank borrowing is secured by the land located
at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the
PRC and certain plant and machinery at carrying amount of
approximately RMB537,000 (2016: RMB846,000).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had outstanding other
borrowings amounting to approximately RMB19,269,000
(including interest portion approximately RMB1,041,000). The
other borrowings were mainly used in purchase of production
raw materials and payment of labor costs and as the general
working capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2017, Beijing
Gensir is the guarantor of the other borrowings in the amount
of RMB3,000,000.

Financial Assistance to Related Parties

As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from a shareholder
— Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company Limited was
approximately RMB593,000 (2016: RMB593,000). As at 31
December 2017, the amount of approximately RMB593,000
was fully impaired.

As at 31 December 2017, the amount due from a former
related company — Shanxi Jindi Yucheng Medical Equipments
Company Limited (formerly known as Taiyuan Huamei
Medical Equipments Company Limited) (“Shanxi Jindi”) was
approximately RMB47,000 (2016: RMB4,283,000). As at 31
December 2017, the amount of approximately RMB47,000 was
fully impaired. At the year end of 2017, the Company adopted
an offset plan, pursuant to which RMB5,000,000 was offset
the amount due from Shanxi Jindi against the amount due to
Taiyuan Changcheng. As a result, the amount due from Shanxi
Jindi and the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng decreased
by the same amount respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENWR DM

Leasing Arrangement

As an office building (the “No. 8 Building”) owned by the
Company was vacant for a long period of time, the Company,
during the second half of 2017, has been negotiation with a
related party to enter into a leasing arrangement and intends
to enter into a letter of intent for the leasing arrangement.
Due to the substantial change in the board composition and
management of the Company at the end of November 2017
and miscommunication problem, the management office of
the Company wrongly entered into a lease agreement with
the related party instead of a letter of intent without the prior
Board’s approval on 26 December 2017. The No. 8 Building
was not in the condition of use as no interior decoration
and proper water and electricity connection in place and the
related party has not ready to occupy the No. 8 Building.
The management of Company considers that this is the
management and communication mistake. In this connection,
the Company then entered into a cancellation agreement with
the related party on 11 June 2018, pursuant to which both of
the Company and the related party agreed that the original
lease agreement should be cancelled at the effective date of
the agreement and there shall be no obligations relating to the
original lease agreement owed to the counter party.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the total assets of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB8,664,000 to approximately
RMB115,068,000 as compared to approximately
RMB123,732,000 as at the end of the previous financial year,
representing a decrease of approximately 7%.

As at 31 December 2017, the total liabilities of the
Group increased by approximately RMB19,912,000 to
approximately RMB124,720,000 as compared to approximately
RMB104,808,000 as at the end of the previous financial year,
representing an increase of approximately 19%.

As at 31 December 2017, the total equity of the Group
decreased by approximately RMB28,576,000 to approximately
RMB9,652,000 in negative as compared to approximately
RMB18,924,000 as at the end of the previous financial year.

Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2017, the gearing ratio (defined as net
debt divided by total share capital plus net debt) of the Group
was approximately 109% (2016: 83%).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Significant Investment Held

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held interests in
associates with the carrying value of approximately RMB
167,000 (2016: RMB246,000).

Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries

The Group had no acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s land and plant
and machinery with the carrying value of approximately
RMB10,827,000 and RMB537,000 respectively (2016:
RMB11,120,000 and RMB846,000) were pledged to a bank as
securities for the borrowing facilities of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Tiayuan
Changcheng provided further financial assistance of
RMB1,300,000, which are secured by certain plant and
machinery and motor vehicles of the Company, to the
Company. As at 31 December 2017, the carrying amount
of the pledged plant and machinery and motor vehicles was
approximately RMB1,417,000 and RMB Nil respectively.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.

Exposure of Fluctuation in Exchange Rates

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets, and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currency of the
Group.

Employee Information

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately
511 (2016: 542) full-time employees. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group reported staff costs of
approximately RMB21,401,000 (2016: RMB23,751,000). The
Group remunerates its employees based on their experience,
performance and value, which they contribute to the Group.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX EENRSAREEAEBZEE

Executive Directors

Mr. Guo Xu Zhi (“Mr. Guo"”), aged 54, was appointed
as an executive director of the Company on 1 November
2013. Mr. Guo was elected as the chairman of the board of
directors of the Company and appointed as the compliance
officer and authorised representative of the Company on 30
November 2017. Mr. Guo is currently the secretary of the Party
Committee of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial
Corporation.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Guo has served as a
member of Committee of Industry and Traffic of Taiyuan
City Economic Committee, the head of the Organisation
Department and head of Human Resources of Taiyuan City
Economic Committee, the director, deputy general manager
and secretary of the Disciplinary Committee of Taiyuan Boiler
Group Company Limited, the chairman and general manager
of Shanxi Automotive Industry Group Company Limited, the
secretary of the Party Committee, director and deputy general
manager of Taiyuan Changan Heavy Duty Vehicle Company
Limited, the chairman and secretary of the Party Committee of
Shanxi Jindi Enterprise Management Group Company Limited.

In 2006, Mr. Guo was awarded to Taiyuan Model Worker title.
In 2009, 2010 and 2011, Mr. Guo was awarded to Taiyuan
Meritorious Entrepreneur title for three years in a row. Mr.
Guo was elected as a member of Standing Committee of the
Fourth Xiaodian District of Taiyuan City People’s Congress and
deputy of the Tenth Taiyuan City People’s Congress. Mr. Guo
graduated from North Eastern Engineering College and holds a
master’s degree in engineering.

Mr. Song Zhenglai (“Mr. ZL Song"”), aged 41, holds a college
degree from the School of Economics and Management of
Changchun University. Mr. ZL Song was appointed as an
executive director and the vice-chairman of the board of
directors of the Company on 30 November 2017. Mr. ZL Song
is currently the financial controller of the Company.

Mr. ZL Song served as the chief financial officer of Changchun
Changling Engine Company Limited from March 2002
to September 2004; the financial director of Shenzhen
Zhonghang Night Vision Technology Limited from May 2006
to March 2009; and the general manager of Changchun Faw
Automotive Chassis Limited Company from May 2010 to
January 2014.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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Mr. Shen Jian (“Mr. Shen”), aged 44, holds a master’s degree
in international trade from Shanxi University of Finance and
Economics. Mr. Shen was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2017. Mr. Shen ceased to
be the secretary of the board of directors of the Company
effective on 1 June 2018.

Mr. Shen served as the administrative personnel of marketing
department of the Company from April 2000 to July 2009 and
the deputy general manager of the Company from 19 August
2016 to November 2017.

Ms. Wang Lingling (“Ms. Wang"), aged 51, holds a bachelor’s
degree in optoelectronic from the Department of Physics of
Shanxi University and a doctoral degree in material physics
and chemistry from Changchun University of Science and
Technology. Ms. Wang was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2017. Ms. Wang is currently
the vice general manager of technical quality and the chief
engineer of the Company.

Ms. Wang served as the craftsman in the optical fiber plant
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from July 1988 to December 1995; the chief of section
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optoelectronics Microlight Equipment
Factory from January 1996 to December 1998; the vice senior
of workshop of the Company from January 1999 to December
2007; and the manager of quality department of the Company
from January 2008 to May 2009 and the vice general manager
of technical quality of the Company from June 2009 to the
present.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guo Liang (“Mr. GL Yuan”), aged 56, graduated
from Changchun University of Science and Technology. Mr.
GL Yuan was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 27 May 2011. Mr. GL Yuan was appointed
as a member of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Mr. GL Yuan served as the deputy director of the
Strategic Policy Committee of the Company from May 2011 to
November 2017.

Prior to joining the Company, Mr. GL Yuan worked with Shanxi
Jinxi Machines Factory from August 1985 to April 1990 and
worked with Taiyuan City Economic Committee from May
1990 to July 2006.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX EERER

Based on the disclosure of interest filings, as at the latest
practicable date, Mr. GL Yuan holds 3,645,000 H shares and
his spouse holds 250,000 H shares of the Company.

Mr. Wu Bo (“Mr. Wu”), aged 51, holds a bachelor’'s degree
in economic management from Heilongjiang Institute of
Commerce. Mr. Wu was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 30 November 2017. From February 2008
to the present, Mr. Wu has been the executive director and
general manager of Shenzhen Ronger Optics & Electronic
Technology Development Company Limited; the supervisor of
Kunming Ronger Optic & Electronic Technology Development
Company Limited; and the chairman of the board of directors
of Yunnan Zhongkewei Optical Instruments Company Limited.
Mr. Wu served as the general manager of Russia Zhenhui
Company from April 1997 to August 2007.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms. Long Yan (“Ms. Long"”), aged 45, holds a bachelor’s
degree in accounting from Hunan College of Finance and
Economics. Ms. Long was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of
the nomination committee of the Company on 30 November
2017. Ms. Long is currently the chief financial officer and the
secretary of the board of directors of Beijing Renda Strategy
Management Consulting Company Limited (the securities
of which are traded on National Equities Exchange and
Quotations ("NEEQ") with stock code: 870311).

Ms. Long served as the cost accounting and accounting
supervisor of Shenzhen Luoji Electronics Company Limited
from July 1993 to December 1995; the financial manager of
Changsha Chiatia Company Limited from January 1996 to
October 2002; the manager of finance, internal control, and
audit departments of Sureland Industrial Fire Safety Limited
from November 2002 to December 2014; the chief financial
officer and secretary of the board of directors of Langfang
Willsoft Software Company Limited (the securities of which are
traded on NEEQ with stock code: 834811) from January 2015
to January 2016; and the manager of department of finance of
Changsha ENN Gas Company Limited from February 2016 to
May 2017.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Ms. Ning Lingying (“Ms. Ning”), aged 46, graduated from the
Politics Department of Shanxi Provincial Education College. Ms.
Ning was appointed as an independent non-executive director
and a member of the audit committee of the Company on
30 November 2017. Ms. Ning is currently the chairman of
Taiyuan Weigang Experimental School. Ms. Ning has extensive
experience in management of education institutions.

Ms. Qie Hui Fang (“Ms. Qie”), aged 41, holds a bachelor’s
degree in education management from Capital Normal
University. Ms. Qie was appointed as an independent non-
executive director, a member of the remuneration committee
and a member of the nomination committee of the Company
on 30 November 2017. Ms. Qie has been a teacher at Taiyuan
4th Experimental School since 2002. Ms. Qie has extensive
experience in education management.

Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiao Ou (“Ms. Han"), aged 39, graduated from
Shanxi Normal University with a major in Chinese language
and holds a postgraduate degree of political science. Ms.
Han was appointed as a supervisor of the Company since 27
May 2011. Ms. Han is currently the chairman of the labor
union and the secretary of the Communist Youth League of
Taiyuan Chancheng Optics Electronics Industrial Corporation;
and the chairman of the supervisor committee and the senior
of general manager of the Company. Ms. Han has been
working in the Company since graduating from Shanxi Normal
University in 1999.

Mr. Dong Yonghong (“Mr. Dong”), aged 49, graduated from
Shanxi University majoring in economic management. Mr.
Dong was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30
November 2017. Mr. Dong has been the project manager of
the research and development centre of the Company since
February 2006.

Mr. Yuan Shaopu (“Mr. SP Yuan”), aged 31, holds a
postgraduate master’s degree from Shanghai University. Mr.
SP Yuan was appointed as a supervisor of the Company on 30
November 2017. Mr. SP Yuan is currently an attorney of China
Commercial Law Firm. Mr. SP Yuan worked with the legal
compliance department of Taikang Pension Share Company
Limited from November 2013 to March 2015.
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Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

EX EENRSAREEAEBZEE

Mr. Song Zhenbao (“Mr. ZB Song”), aged 47, holds a master
degree from Jilin University. Mr. ZB Song was appointed as
a supervisor of the Company on 30 November 2017. Mr.
ZB Song is currently a business management consultant of
Changchun Huagingyuan Technology Company Limited.
Mr. ZB Song was the vice president of Changchun Yongxin
Pharmaceutical from 2006 to 2008; and the chief consultant
of UFIDA Software Company Limited, Jilin Branch from 2009
to 2011.

Senior Management

Mr. Fan Ji Ming (“Mr. Fan"), aged 56, graduated from Shanxi
Provincial Electronics School. Mr. Fan currently serves as the
director of infrastructure and safety of the Company. Mr. Fan
served as the production manager, the commander of technical
reform department, the manager of purchasing & supply, and
the deputy general manager of the Company. Mr. Fan has
been the deputy general manager of Taiyuan Changcheng
Optics Electronics Industrial Corporation since 1999.

Mr. Qian Yun (“Mr. Qian”), aged 54, graduated from the
Mechanical Department of Taiyuan Polytechnic University. Mr.
Qian is a senior engineer. Mr. Qian currently serves as the
director of enterprise planning of the Company. Prior to joining
the Company in 2005, Mr. Qian served as a deputy general
manager of the Taiyuan Sanjin Aluminum Company Limited.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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The board of directors of the Company submit the annual
report together with the audited consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Principal Activities

The Company continued to be principally engaged in design,
research, development, manufacture, and sale of image
transmission fibre optic products. The principal activities of
its subsidiaries are set out in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.

Segment Information

Details of the Group’s segmental information for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 are set out in the accompanying consolidated financial
statements. The board of directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the audited results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the past five financial years is set out
in the section headed “Five-year Financial Summary” of this
annual report.

Business Review and Financial Review

Details of business review and financial review of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report.

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
accompanying consolidated financial statements and notes
to the consolidated financial statements. As at 31 December
2017, the Company had reserves RMB Nil (2016: RMB Nil)
available for dividend distribution to shareholders.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors
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Share Capital

There were no movements in the Company’s issued share
capital during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of Shares

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company and there is no restriction
against such rights under the Companies Law (Revised) in the
PRC.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

Staff Retirement Plans

All members of staff are entitled to participate in the public
welfare fund, which was set up for the purpose of ensuring
that the participating employees will have sufficient means
to support their living after retirement. For the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group reported employer's pension
scheme contributions of approximately RMB5,722,000 (2016:
RMB6,164,000).

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
largest customer and the five largest customers accounted
for approximately 33% (2016: 53%) and 83% (2016: 98%)
respectively, of the Group’s total turnover.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
largest supplier and the five largest supplies accounted for
approximately 59% (2016: 49%) and 81% (2016: 61%)
respectively, of the Group’s total purchases.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, none of
the directors or supervisors of the Company or their respective
associates or any of the shareholders of the Company who
owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had
any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers.
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Connected Transactions

The Group obtained financial assistance from Taiyuan
Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial Corporation
("Taiyuan Changcheng”) since the late of 2011. As at 31
December 2011, 2012, 2013, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 31
December 2017, the amount due to Taiyuan Changcheng
was RMB500,000, RMB12,400,000, RMB14,400,000,
RMB14,400,000, RMB14,400,000, RMB16,490,070 (including
interest portion RMB2,090,070), and approximately
RMB13,327,000 (including interest portion approximately
RMB2,627,000) respectively. During the year ended 31
December 2017, Tiayuan Changcheng provided further
financial assistance of RMB1,300,000, which are secured
by certain plant and machinery and motor vehicles of the
Company, to the Company. As at 31 December 2017, the
carrying amount of the pledged plant and machinery and
motor vehicles was approximately RMB1,417,000 and RMB Nil
respectively.

The Group obtained financial assistance from Beijing Gensir
Venture Capital Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir”)
during the year ended 31 December 2017. As at 31 December
2017, the amount due to Beijing Gensir was RMB454,000
(including interest portion approximately RMB4,000).

The Group obtained financial assistance from two connected
persons (“Connected Persons”) during the year ended
31 December 2017. As at 31 December 2017, the amount
due to Connected Persons was amounting to approximately
RMB712,000 (including interest portion approximately
RMB8,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2017, total interest charged
by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and Connected Persons
was approximately RMB537,000, RMB4,000 and RMB8,000
respectively. The directors of the Company consider that the
interest charged by Taiyuan Changcheng, Beijing Gensir and
Connected Persons are based on normal commercial terms
or better. The financial assistances and interest expenses are
exempted from connected transaction requirements.
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Directors

The directors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Guo Xu Zhi (appointed as Chairman on 30 November 2017)

Mr. Song Zhenglai (Vice-Chairman)
(appointed as director and Vice-Chairman on
30 November 2017)
Mr. Shen Jian (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Ms. Wang Lingling (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Wang Wen Sheng (Chairman)
(retired as director and Chairman on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Tian Qun Xu (retired on 30 November 2017)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yuan Guo Liang
Mr. Wu Bo (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Zhang Shao Hui (Vice-Chairman)

(retired on 30 November 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Long Yan (appointed on 30 November 2017)

Ms. Ning Lingying (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Ms. Qie Hui Fang (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Ni Guo Qiang (retired on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Li Li Cai (retired on 30 November 2017)

Mr. Duan Zhong (retired on 30 November 2017)

Ms. Zhang Zhi Hong (retired on 30 November 2017)

The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting by the end of each of three-year period.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
30 November 2017 (the “"EGM"): (i) Mr. Guo Xu Zhi was re-
elected as the executive director of the Company; (ii) Mr. Yuan
Guo Liang was re-elected as the non-executive director of
the Company; (iii) Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Shen Jian, and Ms.
Wang Lingling were elected as the executive directors of the
Company; (iv) Mr. Wu Bo was re-elected as the non-executive
director of the Company; (v) Ms. Long Yan, Ms. Ning Lingying
and Ms. Qie Hui Fang were elected as the independent non-
executive directors of the Company.
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At the conclusion of the EGM, (i) Mr. Wang Wen Sheng and
Mr. Tian Qun Xu retired as the executive directors of the
Company; (i) Mr. Zhang Shao Hui retired as a non-executive
director of the Company; and (iii) Mr. Ni Guo Qiang, Mr. Li Li
Cai, Mr. Duan Zhong and Ms. Zhang Zhi Hong retired as the
independent non-executive directors of the Company.

Supervisors

The supervisors who held office during the year ended 31
December 2017 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Supervisors

Ms. Han Xiao Ou (Chairman)

Mr. Dong Yonghong (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Yuan Shaopu (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Mr. Song Zhenbao (appointed on 30 November 2017)
Ms. Lv Jun Li (retired on 30 November 2017)

Mr. Sun Wei (retired on 30 November 2017)

Mr. Xiang Hui (retired on 30 November 2017)

The supervisors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting or the employee meeting of the Company
by the end of each of three-year period.

At the EGM, Mr. Yuan Shaopu and Mr. Song Zhenbao were
elected as the shareholder-representative supervisors of the
Company. Ms. Han Xiao Ou and Mr. Dong Yonghong were
appointed by the Company as the employee-representative
supervisors of the Company effective on 30 November 2017.

At the conclusion of the EGM, Ms. Lv Jun Li, Mr. Sun Wei, and
Mr. Xiang Hui retired as the supervisors of the Company.

Biographical Details of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management

Brief biographical details of directors, supervisors and senior
management are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of
this annual report.

Emoluments of The Directors and Supervisors and The
Five Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments and the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ Service Agreements

Save as disclosed, none of the directors and supervisors of the
Company has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests or Short Positions
in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture of the
Company

As at 31 December 2017, the directors or supervisors of the
Company who had interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) as recorded
in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the required standard of dealings by
directors of listed issuers as referred to in Rule 5.46 of the
GEM Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company

EBEREERBHE
@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ\“ﬂ»‘@ﬁj%%&%%ﬁﬁﬁ
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RARBIRGD REERND ZHR

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate

percentage of  Approximate

holding of the  percentage of holding of the
Nature and capacity Number and domestic  holding of the total share
in the shareholding type of domestic shares of the H shares of the  capital of the
Name of the Company shares/H shares Company* Company* Company*
BEALH BEALH BEALH
BEARAREZ RER,/HE nERZ HER 2 B4 RA&g2
] HERSH HERER BB AR BAESHr
Yuan Guo Liang Personal Interest and Family Interest 3,895,000 - 3.54% 1.26%
RER EABE LR RS H shares Hik
(Note 1) (Ff3E 1)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * HRB D AR R ZMIE/ N8
two decimal places. fi °
Note: B AT -
1. 3,645,000 H shares are registered in the name of Yuan Guo 1. 3,645,000fkHIEF A =R B R B & B &
Liang and 250,000 H shares are registered in the name of his 250,000 fHIF A E B R &EERL -

spouse.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company nor their respective
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the required
standard of dealings by directors of listed issuers as referred to
in Rules 5.46 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2017, so far as the directors of the
Company are aware, persons other than the directors or
supervisors of the Company who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336
of the SFO, were as follows:
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Name of the Company shares/H shares Company* Company* Company*
BEART BELRT BELRT
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#E HERSH HEREE R ERl AN 3Pl A
Domestic Shares:
RER:
Zhang Shao Hui Interest in a controlled corporation 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
ROE REHI ARz ER domestic shares
NER
(Notes 1) (Ff3E 1)
Beijing Gensir Venture Capital  Registered and beneficial owner of the 82,200,000 41.34% - 26.61%
Management Limited domestic shares and interest in a domestic shares
IRPBEIEREERERDLA  controlled corporation NER
MERZBLEREREAARKER  (Notes 2) (115 2)
INPA: 3
Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Registered and beneficial owner of the 80,160,000 40.31% - 25.95%
Electronics Industrial domestic shares domestic shares
Corporation NERBELRERERA HNER
ARRBABEFIEAA
Liaoning Shuguang Industrial ~ Registered and beneficial owner of the 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
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Approximate
percentage of

Approximate

Approximate
percentage of

holding of the  percentage of holding of the
Nature and capacity Number and domestic  holding of the total share
in the shareholding type of domestic shares of the Hshares of the  capital of the
Name of the Company shares/H shares Company* Company* Company*
BEART BEALA BEALA
BEADAREZ RER/HE NERZ HiR 2 84 LN}
& HERSH YERER A ARl BHAEI
Li Jin Dian Interest in a controlled corporation 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
£33 REHARZER domestic shares
AR
(Notes 3) (5 3)
Liu Gui Ying Family interest 34,000,000 17.10% - 11.01%
fER FIEER domestic shares
nER
(Notes 3) (5 3)
Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Registered and beneficial owner 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
Control Company Limited of the domestic shares domestic shares
AREBEDEHERRA RNERZELRERHEBA AR
Liu Jiang Interest in a controlled Corporation 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
AT REHIAA ER domestic shares
nER
(Notes 4) (5 4)
Qiu Gui Qin Family interest 24,900,000 12.52% - 8.06%
BHE FikEs domestic shares
nER
(Notes 4) (5 4)
H Shares:
HR:
Kwong Tat Finance Limited Registered and beneficial owner 33,975,000 - 30.89% 11.00%
of H shares H shares Hfix
HR 2B RE&EEA (Notes 5) (FifE 5)
Cai Zheng Interest in a controlled corporation 33,975,000 - 30.89% 11.00%
ZIF REHARZER H shares Hi&
(Notes 5) (£ 5)
* Shareholding percentages have been rounded to the nearest * ERES D AR ERZE I 2 WE/ N

two decimal places.
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Notes:

Part of these domestic shares (57,300,000 domestic shares)
is registered in the name of Beijing Gensir Venture Capital
Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir”). Beijing Gensir is
owned as to 100% by Zhang Shao Hui. As Zhang Shao Hui is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more
of the voting power at the general meeting of Beijing Gensir,
for the purpose of the SFO, Zhang Shao Hui is deemed to be
interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by
Beijing Gensir.

Part of these domestic shares (24,900,000 domestic shares) is
registered in the name of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control
Company Limited (“Taiyuan Tanghai”). Taiyuan Tanghai is
owned as to approximately 36.37% by Beijing Gensir. As
Beijing Gensir is entitled to exercise or control the exercise of
one-third or more of the voting power at the general meeting
of Taiyuan Tanghai, for the propose of the SFO, Zhang Shao
Hui is deemed to be interested in the entire 24,900,000
domestic shares held by Taiyuan Tanghai.

Part of these domestic shares (57,300,000 domestic shares)
is registered in the name of Beijing Gensir Venture Capital
Management Limited (“Beijing Gensir”). Beijing Gensir is
owned as to 100% by Zhang Shao Hui. The rest of these
domestics shares (24,900,000) are registered in the name
of Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic Control Company Limited
("Taiyuan Tanghai”). Taiyuan Tanghai is owned as to
approximately 36.37% by Beijing Gensir. As Beijing Gensir is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more
of the voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai,
for the purpose of the SFO, Beijing Gensir is deemed to be
interested in the entire 57,300,000 domestic shares held by
Beijing Gensir and 24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan
Tanghai.

These 34,000,000 domestic shares are registered in the name
of Liaoning Shuguang Industrial Group Company Limited
(“Liaoning Shuguang”). Liaoning Shuguang is owned as to
approximately 48.11% by Li Jin Dian. As Li Jin Dian is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Liaoning Shuguang,
for the purpose of the SFO, Li Jin Dian is deemed to be
interested in the entire 34,000,000 domestic shares held by
Liaoning Shuguang. Liu Gui Ying, as the spouse of Li Jin Dian,
is taken to be interested in the shares held by Li Jin Dian by
virtue of Part XV of the SFO.
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4. These 24,900,000 domestic shares are registered in the
name of Taiyuan Tanghai. Taiyuan Tanghai is owned as to
approximately 47.29% by Liu Jiang. As Liu Jiang is entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the
voting power at the general meeting of Taiyuan Tanghai, for
the propose of the SFO, Liu Jiang is deemed to be interested
in the entire 24,900,000 domestic shares held by Taiyuan
Tanghai. Qiu Gui Qin, as the spouse of Liu Jiang, is taken to be
interested in the shares held by Liu Jiang by virtue of Part XV
of the SFO.

5. These 33,975,000 H shares are registered in the name of
Kwong Tat Finance Limited. For the purpose of the SFO, Cai
Zheng is deemed to be interested in the 33,975,000 H shares
held by Kwong Tat Finance Limited.

Save as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are not
aware of other person who, as at 31 December 2017, had
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 336 of the SFO.

Share Option Scheme

The Group do not have share option scheme.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire H Shares

During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the
directors or supervisors of the Company was granted options
to subscribe for H shares of the Company. As at 31 December
2017, none of the directors or supervisors of the Company nor
their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to
acquire H shares of the Company or had exercised any such
right during the year.

Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed, no contracts of significance in relation to
the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a director or a supervisor
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the year ended 31 December 2017 or at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group was entered into or existed during the year.
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Competing Interests

The directors of the Company believe that none of the
directors, supervisors and management shareholders of the
Company nor any of their respective associates had an interest
in a business which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2017.

Confirmation of Independence by Independent Non-
Executive Directors

The Company confirms that it has received from each of
the incumbent independent non-executive directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rules
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers, based on the
confirmations received, the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors of the Company, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held
by the public as at the date of this report.

Audit Committee

In compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has established an audit committee. The
primary function of the audit committee are to review and to
provide supervision over the financial reporting process and
internal control system of the Group. The audit committee
comprises two independent non-executive directors and
one non-executive director, namely Ms. Long Yan, Ms. Ning
Lingying and Mr. Yuan Guo Liang. Ms. Long Yan has been
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee. The audit
committee has reviewed the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 were audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
(“Zhonghui”) whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the board of directors of the Company that
Zhonghui be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Report of the Directors
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Report of the Directors

EEEHES

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Group are set out
in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this
annual report.

On behalf of the board of directors

Guo Xu Zhi
Chairman

Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC,
28 August 2018
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors of the Company recognises the
importance of corporate governance practice of a listed
company and is committed to adopting the standards of
corporate governance. It is in the interest of the stakeholders
and shareholders for a listed company to operate in a
transparent manner with the adoptions of various self-
regulatory policies, procedures and monitoring mechanisms
with a clear definition of accountability of directors and
management.

The Company has complied with the code provisions set out in
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules. In the opinion of the board of directors
of the Company, the Company has complied with the code
provisions except for (i) no arrangement of insurance cover in
respect of legal action against the directors of the Company
(code provisions A1.8) due to insufficient budget provided,
(i) one non-executive director and four independent non-
executive directors of the Company did not attend the annual
general meeting of the Company dated 30 November 2017
(code provisions A6.7) due to other engagements; and (iii)
the chairman of the board of directors of the Company did
not attend the annual general meeting of the Company
dated 30 November 2017 (code provisions E1.2) due to other
engagement.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by directors of the Company on terms
no less exacting than the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules throughout
the year ended 31 December 2017. Having made specific
enquiry of all the incumbent directors of the Company,
the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with
the required standard of dealings and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by directors of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company has the collective
responsibility for leadership and control of, and for promoting
the success of, the Company and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) by directing and supervising the Group’s affairs.
The board of directors of the Company sets strategies for the
Group and monitors the performance of the management.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The board of directors of the Company currently comprises
nine directors, of which four are executive directors, namely
Mr. Guo Xu Zhi, Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Shen Jian and Ms.
Wang Lingling; two non-executive directors, namely Mr.
Yuan Guo Liang and Mr. Wu Bo; and three independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. Long Yan, Ms. Ning Lingying,
and Ms. Qie Hui Fang.

The directors of the Company are appointed for a term of
three years and are subject to re-election by shareholders at
the general meeting by the end of each of three-year period.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on
30 November 2017: (i) Mr. Guo Xu Zhi was re-elected as the
executive director of the Company; (i) Mr. Yuan Guo Liang
was re-elected as the non-executive director of the Company;
(iii) Mr. Song Zhenglai, Mr. Shen Jian, and Ms. Wang Lingling
were elected as the executive directors of the Company; (iv)
Mr. Wu Bo was re-elected as the non-executive director of
the Company; (v) Ms. Long Yan, Ms. Ning Lingying and Ms.
Qie Hui Fang were elected as the independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

The Company has received the annual confirmation of
independence from all the incumbent independent non-
executive directors of the Company pursuant to Rule 5.09 of
the GEM Listing Rules and considered them to be independent.

To the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the
members of the board of directors of the Company have
no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships among themselves and between the chairman
and the chief executive officer.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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BOARD MEETING

Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors of the Company met twelve times
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and the attendance

TREREES

ExEeR
ARFNEEERBE-T—+E+=A
ST-ALFERRGToARE T

of the members is as follows: P B 2 HF RN T

Number of

attendance
Name of director EEnA R E
Mr. Guo Xu Zhi SBELRE 12/12
Mr. Song Zhenglai* R IBRR S A * 2/2
Mr. Shen Jian* B o A+ 2/2
Ms. Wang Lingling* Tt 2/2
Mr. Yuan Guo Liang REREE 12/12
Mr. Wu Bo* RIR A 2/2
Ms. Long Yan* BEYh 2 2/2
Ms. Ning Lingying* BB L 2/2
Ms. Qie Hui Fang* MBI L L 2/2
Mr. Wang Wen Sheng* FEXC AL AE 10/10
Mr. Tian Qun Xu* M EFE e A 10/10
Mr. Zhang Shao Hui# SR BB A 10/10
Mr. Ni Guo Qiang* 152 [ 0 52 A ¥ 10/10
Mr. Li Li Caif RIQA F AL 10/10
Mr. Duan Zhong* R RS At 10/10
Ms. Zhang Zhi Hong* REAL 2 10/10
* appointed on 30 November 2017 —T—tHF+—A=THEZE
# retired on 30 November 2017 —ET—+tF+—A=1+THEMHE

WA RFME R R ER
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DIRECTOR’S CONTINUOUS TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

The directors of the Company should participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution into
the board of directors of the Company remains informed and
relevant. The individual training record of each director of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 is as

EEFERIRER

RARESFRDEFBBEHEER  ILEY
5B E ARG MR (e R FE NS
BRATARRAFEFSELYAFTEZE
Ble RRRIZEENREE_T—tF+=
A=+—RIEFEZEXFIZ BRI
T

follows:
Updating on
the business,
operations
and corporate
Attending governance
training seminar matter
ERER KER
TtEERSEZ
Name of director EENE HEEIMNE &M
Mr. Guo Xu Zhi SBELRE v v
Mr. Song Zhenglai* R IR AR 5 A * v v
Mr. Shen Jian* FR{RE S A v v
Ms. Wang Lingling* TR LT v/ v/
Mr. Yuan Guo Liang REREE v/ v
Mr. Wu Bo* RR AL v v
Ms. Long Yan* BESh L+ v/ v/
Ms. Ning Lingying* BB L v 4
Ms. Qie Hui Fang* MBI L L v 4
Mr. Wang Wen Sheng* EXC AL E v/
Mr. Tian Qun Xu* HEFE 4
Mr. Zhang Shao Hui SR BB A 4
Mr. Ni Guo Qiang* (B8 S 4
Mr. Li Li Caif RIS T v
Mr. Duan Zhong?* R RS 4
Ms. Zhang Zhi Hong* SREAL 2L 4
* appointed on 30 November 2017 * —T—+tF+—A=+HEZHF
# retired on 30 November 2017 i —E—t+F+—A=+THEE
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Corporate Governance Report

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of
having a diverse the board of directors and sees increasing
diversity at the board of directors’ level as an essential
element in maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.
The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the
"Policy”). The nomination committee has reviewed the
Policy during the year ended 31 December 2017 and where
appropriate, recommends revision to the board of directors of
the Company for consideration and approval.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Following the retirement of Mr. Wang Wen Sheng on 30
November 2017, Mr. Wang Wen Sheng ceased to be the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company. Mr. Guo
Xu Zhi was elected as the chairman of the board of directors of
the Company with effect from 30 November 2017.

Mr. Shen Jian was the acting chief executive officer of the
Company from August 2016 to November 2017. The Company
is in the process to recruit suitable candidate to assume the
post of chief executive officer of the Company.

The chairman of the board of directors of the Company
provides leadership for the board of directors of the Company
and ensures that the board of directors of the Company works
effectively and performs its responsibilities, and that all key
and appropriate issues are discussed by it in a timely manner.
The chief executive officer is responsible for the management
of the business of the Group, implementation of the policies
and objectives set out by the board of directors of the
Company and is accountable to the board of directors of the
Company for the overall operation of the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has set up three committees including audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee, each committee with its specific terms of reference
as set out in the CG Code.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee with written
terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code. The audit
committee comprises two independent non-executive directors
and one non-executive director, namely Ms. Long Yan, Ms.
Ning Lingying and Mr. Yuan Guo Liang. Ms. Long Yan was
appointed as the chairman of the audit committee.

The primary duties of the audit committee include (i) to
consider the appointment of, external auditors and any
questions of resignation or dismissal; (i) to review financial
information; and (iii) to oversight of the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems.
The audit committee discharged its duties by reviewing the
financial matters, quarterly, interim and annual financial
reports and financial statements during the year ended 31
December 2017. The audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017 have been reviewed by the audit
committee.

BEREES
ARFERUBREEG HETHES
EHACEEATA - BREEGHMA
BUFNTEFRR LT RERFALLR
—BIFPTEFRAREEER - EHL
TEREERBREBRER-

BEREZEGZTEREBE: ()ZEINE
B ZER AR RERE ZEM
MR (NVEHTHER: R(EE B FE
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The audit committee met four times during the year ended EREEeRNHE_Z—+tHF+ A
31 December 2017 and the attendance of the members is as —t+—HIFFEZRTOIEH MK
follows: BZHBRHENT
Number of
attendance
Name of member RE®A X
Mr. Ni Guo Qiang?* {7 B 58 e A 4/4
Mr. Li Li Cai* RIS A 4/4
Ms. Zhang Zhi Hong" REAT L 4/4
Ms. Long Yan* e B Az 4+ 0/4
Ms. Ning Lingying* BEIGFEL L 0/4
Mr. Yuan Guo Liang* REIR A 0/4
# resigned on 30 November 2017 * ZEEFT - A=THEET
* appointed on 30 November 2017 * —FEFT-AZTREZE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE ﬁméﬁ%
The Company has established a remuneration committee with ARRERUFHEE S HEEBER

written terms of reference in consistence with the CG Code.
The remuneration committee comprises two independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director, namely
Ms. Long Yan, Ms. Qie Hui Fang and Mr. Yuan Guo Liang. Ms.
Long Yan was appointed as the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report

The primary duties of the remuneration committee include
(i) to make recommendation to the board of directors on the
policy and structure for all directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy; and
(i) to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals. The remuneration reviewed the remuneration policy
of all directors’ and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2017.

The remuneration committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

TRERBRES

FHEZEE T EREERE: (MERE
ENEREEABZHFHERRRERE U
Ko L ER 3L IE 35 1 B35 BA JZ #O A2 Fr ) 5T 38 BAY
BE mMEFSRHES Kk kitE
EEENTMER - FTMEEEREEC
E—tF+_A=+—HLEFEERF2
BEZNSREEABNFHER-

FMWEZEgenN8E=_ZT—tF+-H
ST HLEFERRIT-REH MK
Bz HFERsEmT:

Number of

attendance
Name of member REHE H R
Ms. Long Yan* BEUh 2 1/1
Mr. Yuan Guo Liang* REIR i~ 1/1
Ms. Qie Hui Fang* MBI L L™ A
* appointed on 30 November 2017 * —E—+t+tF+-A=THEZE

Details of remuneration paid to members of senior
management (including directors and supervisors) fell within
the following bands:

AEREEEAR (BRESEMES)XMN
Z N T T S E R FE

Number of
Individuals
AR
RMB120,000 or below AR#120,000702 AT 18
RMB120,001 — RMB300,000 AR#120,0017T - AR#300,0007T 2
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZERE
The Company has established a nomination committee AABERUIREBEE S EEZMBESR

with written terms of reference in consistence with the CG
Code. The nomination committee comprises the chairman of
the board of directors and two independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Guo Xu Zhi, Ms. Long Yan and Ms. Qie
Hui Fang. Mr. Guo Xu Zhi was appointed as the chairman of
the nomination committee.
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The primary duties of the nomination committee include (i) to
review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board of directors; (ii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become members of
the board of directors; and (iii) to make recommendations to
the board of directors on the appointment or re-appointment
of directors. The nomination reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the board of directors of the Company and
the board diversity policy during the year ended 31 December
2017.

The nomination committee met one time during the year
ended 31 December 2017 and the attendance of the members
is as follows:

REZEGBEGZIERERT: (Mad
EEamRiE ABREX (BHREKEE A
B AR TE)  (VERREREERAE
FEFEXNEZAL R(iVHEFEREX
ENZIRNESFERIER -EREES
RBE-ZT—tF+_A=+—HLFE
BRI ARAEZTGHRE  ABKMAEK
REEFEZTILBEK-

REZEGNRBEZE_T—tF+ A
ST HLEFEERIT-REH MK
Bz HFERsEmT:

Number of

attendance
Name of member REHA HERE
Mr. Guo Xu Zhi* SBEEE* 1/1
Ms. Long Yan* BE U2z 1+ 11
Ms. Qie Hui Fang* MEIFF L+ 11
* appointed on 30 November 2017 * —E—+tFE+-—A=THEZE

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company was held on 30
November 2017.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial reporting

The management is supposed to provide such explanation
and information to the board of directors of the Company on
monthly basis so as to enable the board of directors of the
Company to make an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the board of directors for
approval.

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for
presenting annual; interim; and quarterly reports, price-
sensitive announcements and other disclosure requirements
under the GEM Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The audit committee reviewed the financial matters, quarterly,
interim and annual financial reports and financial statements
of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report

The respective responsibilities of the directors of the Company
and the auditors for preparing financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditors’ Report” of this annual
report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The board of directors of the Company acknowledged
its responsibility for the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems. In light of the size
and scale of the Group’s businesses, the board of directors
of the Company is delegated with the responsibility for
overseeing the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group on an ongoing basis and for reviewing its
effectiveness. Therefore, the Group currently do not have an
internal audit department. During the course of reviewing of
risk management and internal control systems of the Group,
the board of directors of the Company identified that the
Group has material uncertainty in going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The external auditors provide services to the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2017. The remuneration of the
external auditors for the provision of audit service during the
year under review is HK$500,000 and the provision of non-
audit services is HK$42,000.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 were audited by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
("Zhonghui”) whose term of office will expire upon the
forthcoming annual general meeting. The audit committee has
recommended to the board of directors of the Company that
Zhonghui be re-appointed as the auditors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting and
putting forward proposal at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to article 53 of the articles of association of the
Company, an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM") be
convened on the written requisition of shareholders holding
more than 10% (including 10%) of the voting shares issued by
the Company. When the board of directors receives the written
requisition, the board of directors shall convene an EGM within
two months.

Pursuant to article 73 of the articles of association of the
Company, if shareholders request to convene an EGM or
a class meeting of shareholders, the following procedures
should be followed: an EGM may be convened on the written
requisition of any two or more shareholders of the Company
holding more than 10% of the paid up capital of the Company
which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company (the “Requisitionists”). Such written requisition
must specify the resolution(s) to be considered in the EGM
and must be signed by the Requisitionists and deposited at
the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
or, in the event the Company ceases to have such principal
office, the registered office of the Company. Shareholders
should follow the requirements and procedures as set out in
such article for convening an EGM. If the board of directors of
the Company does not convene the EGM within 30 days from
the receipt of such requisition, the Requisitionists are entitled
to convene the EGM themselves within four months after the
board of directors of the Company received their requisition at
the Company’s expense.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting held on 30
November 2017, the article 88 of the articles of association of
the Company was amended as to “The Company shall have
a board of directors which is accountable to shareholders.
The board of directors shall consist of seven (7) to eleven (11)
directors, and there shall be one (1) chairman and one (1) to
two (2) deputy chairmen. Directors may also occupy senior
management functions in the Company but the number of
such executive directors shall not exceed one-half (1/2) of
the total number of directors. There shall be at least three (3)
independent non-executive directors, including at least one (1)
having appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company must
appoint independent non-executive directors representing at
least one-third of the board.”

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Corporate Governance Report

ENQUIRIES PUT TO THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries or requests in
respect of their rights to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or by email to ccoegww@126.com, for
the attention of the secretary of the board of directors of the
Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company establishes different communication channels
with investors to update the latest business development and
financial performance including the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports, notices, announcements and
circulars on the GEM website and the Company’s website in
order to maintain a high level of transparency, and to ensure
there is no selective disclosure of inside information.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

This is the ESG report of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight
Equipment Co. Ltd. (the "Group”), highlighting its
Environmental, Social, and Governance (the “ESG")
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as set out in Appendix 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

This ESG report covers the Group's overall performance in two
subject areas, namely, Environmental and Social of the business
operations in the PRC including the headquarter office and
production facilities from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2017, unless otherwise stated.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND
MATERIALITY

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group
to report on for this ESG report, key stakeholders including
investors, shareholders and employees of the Group have been
involved in regular engagement sessions to discuss and to
review areas of attention which will help the business meets its
potential growth and be prepared for future challenges.

STAKEHOLDER'’S FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your views
with us via email at ccoegw@126.com.

l. Environmental

To demonstrate the Group’s commitment to sustainable
development and compliance with laws and regulations
relating to environmental protection, the Group
endeavors to minimise the environmental impact of the
business activities.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance. It seeks to optimise its
production by adopting low energy consumption and
environmental pollution techniques, implementing
environmental-friendly waste disposal methods and
enhancing the environmental awareness of the
employees through regular trainings. The management
team has the overall responsibility for environmental
protection matters within the Group.
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Emissions

The manufacturing process of the Group produces
certain amount of waste water, solid waste and to
a lesser extent gases. In accordance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations and our relevant
environmental policies, the Group must ensure
that national emissions standards are met. Regular
assessments are conducted on the air and greenhouse
gas emissions of the production facilities, as well as
the generation and disposal of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste. The Group does not generate
significant air emissions or hazardous waste.

Use of Resources

The resources used by the Group are principally
attributed to electricity and water consumed at its
production facilities and office. Under our relevant
environmental policies, the Group proactively seeks
opportunities for increasing operating efficiency to
reduce the use of resources, such as energy savings
on lights and air-conditioning systems. The Group also
closely monitors the utilisation of resources and reports
to senior management on this aspect of performance.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Due to the nature of the business, in addition to the
above-mentioned emissions and resource usage, the
Group does not have any direct and significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources in the course
of its operation.

The Group has established system to ensure
environmental compliance by adopting low energy
consumption and environmental pollution techniques.
The Group has also appointed dedicated staff to
monitor the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and
regulations as well as review and update the internal
environmental protection policies.
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Social

The Group believes that one of the key aspects
of its success is the good relationship it maintains
with employees. The Group provides a friendly and
harmonious working environment.

Employment and Labor Practices
Employment

The Group had a total number of approximately
511 employees as of 31 December 2017. The Group
rewards and recognises performing staff by providing a
competitive remuneration package and implementing a
sound performance appraisal system with appropriate
incentives, and to promote career development and
progression by appropriate training and providing
opportunities within the Group for career advancement.

The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC, and the relevant administrative
rules and measures are strictly enforced. These rules
and regulations specify the requirements relating to
employment, labor relations, employees’ remuneration
and welfare to protect the rights of employees.

Health and Safety

The Group has been committed to protect employees’
health and safety. It maintains the occupational health
and workplace safety management system and policies
in conformity to the internationally applied occupational
health and safety management systems requirements
and in strict compliance with the relevant regulations in
the PRC. During the Year, the Group did not encounter
any major accidents during the operation.

Development and Training

Training is an important way to improve the overall
quality and provide comprehensive development of the
employees. The Group has continuously perfected and
modified the employee training management system,
established a multilevel training system, created various
learning opportunities for the employees, in order to
enhance their competence, job skills, knowledge and
performance.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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In daily operations, the Group provides induction
training for new employees. Experienced employees
will act as mentors to guide the new comers on jobs.
The Group arranges the trainings designated according
to the roles and responsibilities of the employees,
mainly includes human resources management,
managerial skills, legal affairs, risk management, project
running, financial and auditing, technical research and
development, environmental protection, occupational
health and safety etc. The Group also updates the latest
information of the industry and laws and regulations
which is essential to the Group’s operation and their job
responsibilities from time to time.

Labor Standards

The Group provides its staff with a safe, health,
comfortable working environment with labor protection,
reasonable remuneration and various welfares. The
Group enters employment contract with each of
its employee in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations in the PRC and also prohibits forced labor.

Operating Practices
Supply Chain Management

To provide top quality services to customers, the
Group carefully sourced its raw materials, packaging
materials and equipment with standardised procurement
procedure and policies. The Group’s procurement policy
and its comprehensive procurement management
systems help screening out undesirable products in
the aspects of raw materials, packaging materials and
equipment selection, product formulation, product
packaging, quality management system in factories,
transportation, etc.

Suppliers for raw materials, packaging materials
and equipment are selected based upon rational
and clear criteria, such as reputation, technical skills
and consistent production quality, compliance with
industrial standards, so as to procure superior goods
and services from the most competitive sources. The
Group’s research and development department set out
product specification for the suppliers to follow, while
the quality control department performs sample test to
ensure that goods and materials received by the Group
are in compliance with the quality and specifications
before they are accepted and transferred to the
warehouse.
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Product Responsibility

The Group aims to achieve the highest possible
standard with all the products sold. The Group has
established relevant policies which cover product quality
guarantee and safety and set up a dedicated quality
control department. They work in collaboration with
the Group’s research and development department,
procurement department and production and
warehousing department to ensure that the products
are of high quality and safe and comply with all
applicable laws and regulations.

Anti-corruption

The Group requires employees to strictly conform to
code of business ethics and put any corruption bribe
behavior to an end as stipulated in the employment
contracts and the relevant policies of the Group. In the
cases of conflict of interest, it must be reported to the
Group’s management.

Community
Community Investment

The Group always seeks to be a positive force in the
communities in which it operates and maintain close
communications and interactions with the communities
in order to contribute to local development.

The Group believes that the creation of a peaceful
community relies on the cooperation of people,
corporations and the government. By working together
with various community partners, the Group believes
can bring a tremendous impact on the sustainable
development of the communities in which it operates.

The Group will also actively encourage staff to volunteer
their time and skills to benefit local communities. It
gives employees the opportunities to find out more
about the issues of the society and environment and
reinforce the Group’s corporate values.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF SHANXI CHANGCHENG
MICROLIGHT EQUIPMENT CO. LTD.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited
liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial
statements of Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment
Co. Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group”) set out on pages 52 to 117 which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group and whether the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. Because of the significance of the
matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient
appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit
opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

R

BLUARBMAEBMROEGRATZER
ES
(RPEARHAFBEZEMAKLZBERRA])

TELHER

BB EE BB SN E2E117EL
TR BATIRID B IR A R A
A(GEAIEEEHEAUBER
hEAHBRERER -F—+F+ =8
St-RMBARBRIER RRERA
EEEMOFAREREM2ERAR &
SEAEDENGARSRER - ARG
HBERENEL R EEHBERE

HFIT e BEEEZKREMBEHRRLE
EMBHREARTEERBBRBRL 2K
BACHERUEERBA -ARAHRET
THANMEEBERNER -l EE S
2 RPAREESEEMNEENERR
BMERHZERAVBRRRERELE
REER-

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER

47



48

Independent Auditor’s Report

B

M % BE R E

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

1.

Amount due to a shareholder and interest
expenses payable to a shareholder

Included in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017 was an amount due
to a shareholder of approximately RMB13,327,000.
Since audit confirmation of such balance has not been
received from the shareholder, we have not been able
to assess the accuracy and completeness of the above
liability. There are no other satisfactory alternative
procedures that we could perform to satisfy ourselves
that this balance as at 31 December 2017 was free from
material misstatement and the related disclosures have
been properly recorded and reflected in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company. No sufficient
evidence has been received by us in respect of whether
the interest expenses payable to that shareholder of
approximately RMB537,000 and RMB2,090,000 charged
to profit or loss were properly accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2016 respectively. However, we are
satisfied that the amount due to the shareholder is fairly
stated as at 31 December 2016.

Amount due from a shareholder

We were unable to obtain sufficient evidence on the
balance of the amount due from a shareholder of
RMB593,000 as at 31 December 2016. No sufficient
evidence has been received by us in respect of whether
the impairment loss related to that shareholder of
approximately RMB593,000 charged to profit or loss
were properly accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
However, we are satisfied that the amount due from a
shareholder is fairly stated as at 31 December 2017.

Amount due from a former related company

We were unable to obtain sufficient evidence on the
balance of the amount due from a former related
company of RMB4,283,000 as at 31 December 2016.
No sufficient evidence has been received by us in respect
of whether the impairment loss related to that former
related company of approximately RMB47,000 charged
to profit or loss were properly accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017. However, we are satisfied that the
amount due from a former related company is fairly
stated as at 31 December 2017.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(continued)

Any adjustments to the figures as described above might have
a significant consequential effect on the Group’s financial
performance and cash flows for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016 and the financial position of the Group as
at 31 December 2017 and 2016, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.

4,

Material uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis

We draw attention to note 2 to the financial
statements which mentions that the Group incurred
a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
RMB28,535,000 for the year ended 31 December 2017
and as at 31 December 2017 the Group had net current
liabilities and net liabilities of RMB86,262,000 and
RMB9,652,000 respectively. In addition, the Group had
outstanding bank and other borrowings amounting to
RMB33,460,000 which would be due for repayment
within the next twelve months and an amount due
to shareholders amounting to RMB13,780,000 which
are repayable on demand. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern and therefore the Group may be unable
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the
normal course of business.
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BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(continued)

4. Material uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis (continued)

The validity of the going concern assumption on which
the consolidated financial statements are prepared is
dependent on the favourable outcomes of the steps
being taken by the Directors as described in note 2 to
the consolidated financial statements. Should the going
concern assumption be inappropriate, adjustments may
have to be made to reflect the situation that assets may
need to be realised at other than the amounts at which
they are currently recorded in the consolidated statement
of financial position. In addition, the Group may have
to provide for further liabilities that might arise, and to
reclassify non-current assets as current assets.

In the absence of sufficient evidence, we were unable
to ascertain whether the assumptions made by the
Directors in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis were appropriate.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA and to issue
an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters described
in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated
financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Wan Ho Yuen

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P04309

Hong Kong, 28 August 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

REREREMEZE RS X

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (UAREKZ3)
2017 2016
—E—+E TE-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Ky aE AR¥FT ARBF T
REVENUE W& 8 19,121 18,731
Cost of sales Fi=h=A DN (15,457) (14,243)
Gross profit ER 3,664 4,488
Other income, gains and losses Hap A Wz K EE 9 1,015 2,841
Selling and distribution costs HERDIHER (957) (1,643)
Administrative expenses THHEX (21,601) (13,158)
Other operating expenses HEMEERT (6,761) (22,665)
Impairment of due from a shareholder & I —fi7 i% 3 3 B & (593) -
Impairment of due from a former FEW — R AR E 12 R SRR E
related company (47) -
Share of loss of an associate ME—FREE R R 2 BB (123) (307)
Finance costs W% ER 10 (3,173) (3,158)
LOSS BEFORE TAX BRBLATE B 11 (28,576) (33,602)
Income tax expense FTEHAX 13 - -
LOSS AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE HRAEBERERZTHEELE
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (28,576) (33,602)
LOSS FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE U T E{EEREIE:
TO:
Owners of the Company AATEEA (28,535) (33,596)
Non-controlling interests FERER (41) (6)
(28,576) (33,602)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR U TE{EEREZHEEAE:
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO:
Owners of the Company AATEEBA (28,535) (33,596)
Non-controlling interests FERER (41) (6)
(28,576) (33,602)
LOSS PER SHARE (RMB) BREB(AR%R) 14
— Basic and diluted -BERNEE (0.092) (0.109)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2017




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B BRI R

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 R-E—+F+-_H=1+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (UANREEZ2)
2017 2016
—E—+tE —E—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iy AR¥TFT ARBF T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ER S 16 76,049 77,522
Land use right T3 AR 17 10,827 11,120
Interests in associates NN 19 167 246
87,043 88,888
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories FE 20 13,517 17,224
Trade and notes receivables EUWE ZEFREE 21 10,589 11,946
Prepayments, deposits and other BB ke R E b EUFIE
receivables 22 2,302 425
Amount due from a shareholder JEUW — (IR R FIA 23 - 593
Amount due from a former related EW—FRATHEE QT HE
company 24 - 4,283
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEHEEE 25 1,617 373
28,025 34,844
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEEE
Trade payables eI & 5 BR 3K 26 11,473 12,283
Accruals and other payables JE 5T R I8 K HL A FE 5/ IB 27 55,574 50,922
Amounts due to shareholders JIE 1 % 3 FR0E 28 13,780 16,490
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 29 33,460 13,920
114,287 93,615
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBABEFE (86,262) (58,771)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRBEE
LIABILITIES 781 30,117
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Deferred government grants BT & B 30 10,433 11,193
10,433 11,193
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (B8 BEEFE (9,652) 18,924
WA RBMASEM BB ERAR

—BLEER
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 R-ZE—+F+_-_HA=+—H

(Expressed in RMB) (UAREKZ3)
2017 2016
—B—tE —E-RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
fit &t AR®ETFT AREFT
EQUITY B

Equity attributable to owners of A2QRHEE AELER
the Company

Share capital PN 31 30,886 30,886
Reserves f#f 32 (40,513) (11,978)

(9,627) 18,908
Non-controlling interests FERER (25) 16
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE (9,652) 18,924

The consolidated financial statements on pages 56 to 117 FSENTEMNBEEMBREN_Z—N
were approved and authorised for issue by the board of FNA -+ /\BEZEEE I &I FET

directors on 28 August 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: oUW TEERREE:
Guo Xu Zhi Song Zhenglai
=& R BUR
Director Director
FF EF

54 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REREaRS X

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 RZ-ZZE—+F+=-_A=1+—H
(Expressed in RMB) (UANREEZ2)

Attributable to owners of the Company

EYNGE ZoDN S
Statutory Non-
Capital surplus Accumulated controlling
Issued capital surplus* reserve* losses* Total interests  Total equity
EERS
BRTRE  EXBH* R RIER* By FERER BEAE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—-A—H 30,886 18,561 11,853 (8,796) 52,504 22 52,526
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREZHEBEAE - - - (33,596) (33,596) (6) (33,602)
At 31 December 2016 RZZ-"F+=-A=+—-H 30,886 18,561 11,853 (42,392) 18,908 16 18,924
At 1 January 2017 i e R 30,886 18,561 11,853 (42,392) 18,908 16 18,924
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREABERLE - - - (28,535) (28,535) (41) (28,576)
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—tF+-A=1—H 30,886 18,561 11,853 (70,927) (9,627) (25) (9,652)

* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves in the * WEBEERBREAMBMMARTAZ L
consolidated statement of financial position. Sl

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER 5 5
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (UARBEZ3)
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR AREFT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES B2 EXBE v EERE
Loss before tax BRI AIE 1B (28,576) (33,602)
Adjustments for: AT RBEL TR
Interest expense FMERLZ 3,173 3,158
Depreciation e 5,339 4,893
Amortisation of land use right = 3 f5F A A 6 293 293
Amortisation of deferred government grants & & B F & Bk 4 (950) (2,478)
Interest income FEWA (3) 3)
Impairment of inventories FERE 6,215 19,735
(Reversal of impairment of)/impairment of BWEBSEINEZE
trade receivables (BERE),HE (29) 1,606
Impairment of investments in associates REE RN B 2 IRERE 148 333
Share of loss of an associate DR E N EEE 123 307
Impairment of due from a shareholder & W — iz A% 3R SR IR (B 593 -
Impairment of due from U — K Al BE A R R R E
a former related company 47 -
Operating cash flows before working RETHRERE Rt EES
capital changes 25 (13,627) (5,758)
Change in inventories FEE (2,508) (12,798)
Change in trade and notes receivables BRESERRREE 1,386 985
Change in prepayments, deposits and other B FRIE &4 K H 4 8 Uy i 8 &
receivables (1,877) 1,172
Change in trade payables ENEZERE (810) 1,636
Change in accruals and other payables JE ST 3R Ko oAl FE A FUR & 4,652 14,814
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from  E& £ (FiH) FIEE
operating activities BEeREFHE (12,784) 51
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZH2EERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BEKERE (3,866) (254)
Government grants received BB FE B 190 1,528
Interest received 2 W F B 3 3
Advance to a former related company BT — KA A A (764) -
Advance to an associate BRT-REERR (192) (349)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated from  REFEE (Fif) FiEL
investing activities REREFE (4,629) 928

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTMRER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

(Expressed in RMB) (UANREBZ2)
2017 2016
—E—+F —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARETFT
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES REETBZHERE
Advance from shareholders R B B R A TR IR 2,290 2,090
Proceeds from bank and other borrowings FITREMEE ZFEHA 19,732 -
Repayment of bank and other borrowings RITREMEREZER (1,241) (80)
Interest paid EANEN RS (2,124) (3,158)
Net cash flows generated from/ METBFAEL (A RLREF
(used in) financing activities 6] 18,657 (1,148)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND ReRBESEEAEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS () FHE 1,244 (169)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVz B e kR EEER
beginning of year 373 542
Cash and cash equivalents at RELzEReRHSEEEE
end of year 1,617 373
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH REeRRAEEEEBERDMN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHES 1,617 373

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER 5 7
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd. (the
“Company"”) was incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") on 10 November 2000 as a joint stock
limited company. The Company’s H shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM") of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of this annual report.

The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) included design,
research, development, manufacture and sale of
image transmission fibre optic products. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB"”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of
the Company of RMB28,535,000 for the year ended
31 December 2017 and as at 31 December 2017 the
Group had net current liabilities and net liabilities of
RMB86,262,000 and RMB9,652,000 respectively. In
addition, the Group had outstanding bank and other
borrowings amounting to RMB33,460,000 which
would be due for repayment within the next twelve
months and amounts due to shareholders amounting to
RMB13,780,000 which are repayable on demand. These
conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
that may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern and therefore the Group
may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its
liabilities in the normal course of business.

The Group intends to maintain its strong business
relationship with its banker to maintain its continuing
support. The Directors are of the opinion that there are
good track records or relationship with its banker which
enhance the Group's ability to renew the current Bank
borrowing upon expiry.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

GOING CONCERN BASIS (continued)

In addition, the Directors have been taking active steps to
improve the liquidity position of the Group. These steps
include (i) strengthening the management of overdue
trade receivables; (i) implementing measures to improve
gross profit margin of the Group's products; and (iii)
implementing stringent cost control measures.

Provided that these measures can successfully improve
the liquidity position of the Group, the Directors are
satisfied that the Group will be able to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due for the foreseeable
future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis. Should
the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments would have to be made to write down
the value of assets to their recoverable amounts, to
provide for any further liabilities which might arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as current
assets and liabilities. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial
statements.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning
on 1 January 2017. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards; Hong Kong Accounting
Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of these
new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant
changes to the Group’s accounting policies, presentation
of the Group’s financial statements and amounts reported
for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application of
these new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the
financial statements of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key
assumptions and estimates. It also requires the directors
to exercise its judgments in the process of applying
the accounting policies. The areas involving critical
judgments and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these consolidated financial statements,
are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

(a) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has
power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the
relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly
affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting
rights held by other parties, to determine whether
it has control. A potential voting right is considered
only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESHBE (&)

(continued)
SEANR (&)

(a) Consolidation (continued) (a)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiaries
that results in a loss of control represents the
difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of
any investment retained in that subsidiaries and
(i) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiaries plus any remaining goodwill relating
to that subsidiaries and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly,
to the Company. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in
equity within equity. Non-controlling interests are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between the non-controlling
shareholders and owners of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(a) Consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
shareholders even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest
in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control are accounted for as equity transactions
(i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the
owners of the Company.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Associates (b) AT

4. EEGFHBEE(4F)

Associates are entities over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of an entity but is not control or
joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered
when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the
holder’s intention and financial ability to exercise or
convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements by the
equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate
in an acquisition are measured at their fair
values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’'s share of
the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the
investment and is tested for impairment together
with the investment at the end of each reporting
period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(b) Associates (continued)

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss, and its share of the post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in the
consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate. If the associate subsequently reports
profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals
the share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that
results in a loss of significant influence represents
the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that associate and (i) the
Group's share of the net assets of that associate plus
any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency
translation reserve. If an investment in an associate
becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and
does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(the "functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB,
which is the Company’s presentation currency
and functional currency.

Transactions and balances in each
entity’s financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are
translated into the functional currency on
initial recognition using the exchange rates
prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are
translated at the exchange rates at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at
fair values in foreign currencies are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(c) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the
Group entities that have a functional currency
different from the Company’s presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s
presentation currency as follows:

Assets and liabilities for each statement
of financial position presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

Income and expenses are translated
at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange
rates on the transaction dates); and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()

(d)

Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation (continued)

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and of borrowings are recognised in the
foreign currency translation reserve. When a foreign
operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R

Ut 85 ok MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(d) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(e)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their cost
less their residual values over the estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful
lives are as follows:

Medium term leasehold
buildings

50 years or over the
lease terms, whichever
is shorter

10 years or over the
lease terms, whichever

Leasehold improvements

is shorter
Plant and machinery 10 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 5 years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted average basis. The cost of finished goods
and work in progress comprises raw materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where
appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to
make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(f)

(9)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the statement of financial position
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
assets expire; the Group transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets
but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference
between the asset'’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market and are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.
An allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. The amount of the allowance is
the difference between the carrying amount of
the receivables and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition. The
amount of the allowance is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(9)

(h)

()

()

Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent
periods and recognised in profit or loss when
an increase in the recoverable amount of the
receivables can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
subject to the restriction that the carrying amount
of the receivables at the date the impairment is
reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been
recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents represent cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term highly
liguid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are
classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments
are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred, and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

()]

(k)

U]

Borrowings (continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of
revenue can be measured reliably.

(i) Revenues from the sales of goods are
recognised on the transfer of significant risks
and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when the goods
are delivered and the title has passed to the
customers.

(i) Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

(iii) Services fee income is recognised when the
services are rendered.

(iv) A government grant and subsidy for value-
added tax are recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to it and
that the grant will be received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(m) Employee benefits

(n)

(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the
time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged to
profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the
earlier of the dates when the Group can no
longer withdraw the offer of those benefits
and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination
benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(n)

(o)

Borrowing costs (continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally
and used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying
asset, the amount of borrowing costs eligible
for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of
the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of
the Group that are outstanding during the period,
other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply
with the conditions attaching to it and that the
grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred
and recognised in profit or loss over the period to
match them with the costs they are intended to
compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of
assets are deducted from the carrying amount of
the assets. The grant is recognised in profit or loss
over the life of a depreciable asset by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #HZ_-ZF

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(p) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
recognised in profit or loss because it excludes items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can
be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEESHBE (&)

(continued)
(p) HIE (&)

(p) Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and
liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for
investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of
such properties are presumed to be recovered
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted.
The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model of the Group whose business objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale. If the presumption
is rebutted, deferred tax for such investment
properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the properties will be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when
they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

BHE—F

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(g) Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company.

(b) An entity is related to the Group (reporting
entity) if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Company are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or
joint venture of a member of a group of
which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(g) Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Company or to a parent of the Company.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group's most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of
the Group’s various lines of business in different
geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(s)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and
intangible assets except goodwill, investment
properties, deferred tax assets, inventories and
receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating
unit is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset or cash-
generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result
of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation
is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless
the probability of outflow is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide
additional information about the Group’s position
at the end of the reporting period or those that
indicate the going concern assumption is not
appropriate are adjusting events and are reflected in
the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements
when material.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
Directors have made the following judgements that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in
the consolidated financial statements apart from those
involving estimations, which are dealt with below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies
(continued)
(a) Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis, the validity of
which depends upon the favourable outcomes of
the steps being taken by the Directors as described
in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment, depreciation
and impairment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives,
residual values and related depreciation charges
for the Group's property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. The Group will revise the depreciation
charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Property, plant and equipment are evaluated for
possible impairment on a specific asset basis or in
groups of similar assets, as applicable. This process
requires management’s estimate of the fair value
with reference to a valuation report of each asset
or group of assets less cost of disposal. For any
instance where this evaluation process indicates
impairment, the relevant asset’s carrying amount
is written down to the recoverable amount and
the amount of the write-down is charged against
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade and notes receivables,

()

deposits and prepayments

Impairment of trade and notes receivables,
deposits and prepayments is made based on an
assessment of the recoverability of trade and
notes receivables, deposits and prepayments. The
assessment of impairment of receivables, deposits
and prepayments involves the use of estimates and
judgments. An estimate for doubtful debts is made
when collection of the full amount is no longer
probable, as supported by objective evidence using
available contemporary and historical information to
evaluate the exposure. Bad debts are written off as
incurred. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in the future is different from the original estimates,
such differences will affect the carrying amount
of trade and notes receivables, deposits and
prepayments and thus the impairment loss in the
period in which such estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and selling
expense. These estimates are based on the current
market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of
changes in customer taste and competitor actions.
The Group will reassess the estimates by the end of
each reporting period.

5. TESEHE R TAM
EEZEERR (&)

TEREMTZEEZRR (&)
(b) BEREZHRIREKRERE &

(c)

ERAMNABZHEE

R E ZRA L ERRIE  BE
Ko FA IR 2 BB TR I FE U
SRR RERRE e MIEN
FRIA 2 AT Y Bl 14 1 AT A o AR
R EE RBENRIE 2R ER
BIERMGRTRAR - ERIEE
Al B AR RHE R E - BB
BIREUR T REW [ 2 8508 - A
HEITRERGFT o FRRNE LR
He BERKNERBRAERE
AIRRE G REEERESE
BB A BT OIEZ B
BHRALEREE R MFE
AR AREE - 30K MR 2R
BEE-

FEZUSEFE

FEZAERHET A EX%B
R 2 bt &8 - BRSO
ARBERX - ZE[EFTTIER
BRSO DA e B I 35 S SR B
EEMIBEZER -HREFO
WEBFETRIELEARE
B2 AREFEFAREENS
BERREFHF LB -

m&ﬁﬁ%a&ﬁ&ﬁﬁmg 8 1

—E-tEF



82

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

During the reporting period, the capital structure of the
Group consist of debt which includes interest-bearing
loans and equity attributable to owners of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
Directors review the capital structure on a regular basis.
As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost of
capital and the associated risks, and take appropriate
actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior
periods.

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safequard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios, so that it can continue to provide returns
for the shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid
to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debts. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made in
the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital
as at 31 December 2017 amounted to approximately
RMB9,627,000 in negative (2016: RMB18,908,000),
which the management considers as optimal having
considered the projected capital expenditures and the
projected strategic investment opportunities.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. EXEERE (&)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which NEERBLABE FHEBRAEARLETE
is net debt divided by the total capital plus net debt. Net MEBEFEAESENERGEERR
debt includes trade payables, accrued liabilities, deposits EREER-ERFEPERNE SR
received and other payables, amount due to an associate, FoEFHAE BkiEe REAMmER
amount due to a shareholder and bank and other FRIE - B —KEEE QA RIE - B
borrowing less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital —URERIBUARBRITREAMEE
includes equity attributable to owners of the Company. BEHRERREFMEER - BEXNMERE
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting period BREARNGEE AELEZR RS
were as follows: HRZEXRBEERNT:
2017 2016
—E-tF S
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARB T ARETT

Trade payables FE B 5B 11,473 12,283
Accruals and other payables FE&T FRIE I H b &< 5118 55,574 50,922
Amount due to shareholders AN ES 13,780 16,490
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 33,460 13,920
Less: Cash and cash equivalents woRekReFEIER (1,617) (373)
Net debt BFHE 112,670 93,242
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AN A1 B A B2 (9,627) 18,908
Capital and net debt ERREBFE 103,043 112,150
Gearing ratio EXREEX 109% 83%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The financial instruments of the Group mainly include
cash and cash equivalents, trade and notes receivables,
other receivables, trade payables, other payables, bank
and other borrowings.

The Group’s finance department identifies and evaluates
financial risks in close co-operation with the Group's
operating units. The main risks arising from the Group’s
financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign
currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
financial risk management policy seeks to ensure that
adequate resources are available to manage the above
risks and to create value for its shareholders. The board
regularly reviews these risks and they are summarised
below.

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets
and liabilities are principally denominated in the
functional currencies of the Group. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy in respect of foreign currency transactions,
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

(b) Interest rate risk

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. Cash flow interest
rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of
a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Group does not consider that it has any
significant exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates from its bank borrowing as a
reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in
the interest rates would have no material impact on
the Group’s consolidated profit or loss for the years
ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances
and trade and other receivables included in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to the Group’s financial assets. The
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited
as the Group has deposited its cash principally with
various banks in the PRC.

The Group has significant concentration of credit
risk arising from its ordinary course of business
due to its small customer bases and limited
counterparties involved. This credit risk mainly arises
from the Group’s trade and other receivables. The
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debtor at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate provision for
impairment are made for irrecoverable amounts.
There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

At 31 December 2017, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk of approximately
RMB2,233,000 (2016: RMB3,023,000) and
RMB7,610,000 (2016: RMB8,852,000) out of total
trade receivables of approximately RMB10,589,000
(2016: RMB11,946,000) as at 31 December
2017, which was arising from the Group’s largest
debtor and the three (2016: three) largest debtors
respectively.
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7. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7. BEEREEENREE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (4 )
(d) Liquidity risk d) REBESRAR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current REF BB ATHESBAI R
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that JEHRH R ENE & =k R A E
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its BRI 2 KE - LAFER
liquidity requirements in the short and longer term. RHES RN RSHESE R
The maturity profile of the Company’s financial WIEETORT RN KA TR
liabilities as at the end of reporting period, based ZWEER Y SR BEDHER
on the contracted undiscounted payments, was as mr:
follows:
Total
contractual Total
Less than 1 undiscounted carrying
2017 On demand year Over 1year  cash flow amount
ARRER
ZE—tE REX SME 150 BEREBLE BREE

RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  ARBTR  ARRTZ  ARETR

Trade payables ENBAEN 10,809 664 - 11,473 11,473
Accruals and other payables  [EiTHEREMER R 44,994 4,780 - 49,774 49,774
Amount due to shareholders ~ TEfTREFA 13,780 - - 13,780 13,780
Bank and other borrowings RIREREE 25,556 8,554 - 34,110 33,460
95,139 13,998 - 109,137 108,487
Total
contractual Total
Less than 1 undiscounted carrying
2016 On demand year  Over 1 year cash flow amount
BORER
—E-RF BEX pinE 16 E B8R BEAE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL  ARETT  ARBTT  ARETT  ARKETR

Trade payables ERE5ER 10,754 1,529 - 12,283 12,283
Accruals and other payables  [E3fFEREMEM A 40,204 5,127 - 45,331 45,331
Amount due to a shareholder ~ [Eff—fIkR51E 16,490 - - 16,490 16,490
Bank and other borrowings RIRAMES 13,920 - - 13,920 13,920

81,368 6,656 - 88,024 88,024
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7.

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments

BEERBREEENRBEER
(&)
(e) €MIAEZSE

At 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2017 2016
—E—tF —E-REF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARETT
Financial assets: TREE:
Loans and receivables (including cash EZNEWZIE (BHERE KR
and cash equivalents) ¢%EEEE)
— Trade and notes receivables -RUEIERREE 10,589 11,946
- Financial assets included in — T AERMFIE e R EM
prepayments, deposits and other Bz HEE
receivables 1,430 219
— Amount due from an associate —-ER—REEARRIA 167 246
— Amount due from a shareholder — —fEUW— 7B 5 218 - 593
— Amount due from a former — B —XKAIBERRIFIE
related company - 4,283
— Cash and cash equivalents -HEekREEHEER 1,617 373
13,803 17,660
Financial liabilities: cHAaE:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost &Rt & (& - 1R # $5pK
— Trade payables -ERNE SRR 11,473 12,283
— Financial liabilities included in — B R FRIE K Eo A e A~
accruals and other payables REZEHMERE 49,774 45,331
— Amount due to shareholders —ERRRERIE 13,780 16,490
— Bank and other borrowings - RITRHEMEE 33,460 13,920
108,487 88,024
(f) Fair value (f) 2RE
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial AR RIRBAAER
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in the THEENCRBEZREER
consolidated statement of financial position HEBRHWALBEHREE-

approximate their respective fair values.

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER 8 7
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 —+tFF+—HA=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT 8. WEREEIHEEHR
INFORMATION
The Group’s revenue and contribution to loss were mainly AEBzREREEBERMEERGH
derived from its sale of fiber optic inverters, fiber optic BRBEGRSS  BER  LHER -
straight plates, fiber optic face plates, fiber optic tapers, REARRBBER HRAE—2W
fiber optic tapers billets and microchannel plates, which N EMES (XTELEARARSE
is regarded as a single reportable segment in a manner (TE%‘E?&@ FEL) IERNBE2WME
consistent with the way in which information is reported BUARERSBERERRAEZ IR —
internally to the Directors, being the chief operating Bro Eﬁ?ﬁl«lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi\wﬁﬁzﬂri
decision maker (“CODM"), for purposes of resource A FELEREEEAIBZWMER
allocation and performance assessment. The measures of ai8m &Eﬁﬂiﬁ%]\?ﬁ&zﬁ/\ﬁﬁ%
loss and of total assets and liabilities are consistent with RS R — B o EUt - BREEBS IR RSN -
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other B2V DEDIN-
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement
of financial position which are reported internally to the
CODM. Accordingly, no segment analysis is presented
other than entity-wide disclosures.
Entity-wide disclosures EREE
(a) Information about products (a) BEmZEH
The following table sets forth the total sales to TRENFARIMEIE P HER
external customers by product and the percentage M (REm) RMEBEKEZ
of total revenue by product during the year: 7t (REMmE) -
2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETF T % ARETT %
Fiber optic inverters (note) Yt &I Bl 28 (KY:) 2,421 13 (1,129) -6
Fiber optic straight plates 4 & 1R 3,999 21 6,361 34
Fiber optic face plates 4 E R 719 4 504 3
Fiber optic tapers 3t 1,966 10 403 2
Microchannel plates ERE R 7.916 41 11,719 63
Water purifier FIK 2R 45 0 281 2
Others Hah 2,055 1 592 2
19,121 100 18,731 100
Note: 5t -

Sale return of fiber optic inverters from Europe customers
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was amounting
to approximately RMB3,767,000. As the sales of fibre
optic inverters were smaller than its sale return during the
year ended 31 December 2016, therefore the net sales
was reported as a negative figure.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 HZE_—T—+tF+_-_A=+—HIFE

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Geographical information

The Group principally operates in the PRC and the
Group’s non-current assets are all located in Shanxi,
the PRC.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue
from external customers by geographical location:

8. WEREEIEEN (&)

(b) EER

REBEETERPBETLE M
REB 7 IERBE E I
B9 L 7g -

AEBERBINDF P 2 Wi
BT

2017 2016
S R
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

i3 AR®FT ARETT

The PRC i
Hong Kong BB
Europe BUM
Russia ﬁﬂi%&,ﬁﬁ
Notes:

(ii)

Sale return of fiber optic inverters from Europe
customers during the year ended 31 December
2016 was amounting to approximately
RMB3,767,000. As the sales of fibre optic inverters
were smaller than its sale return during the year
ended 31 December 2016, therefore the net sales
was reported as a negative figure.

Sale return of fiber optic inverters from Russia
customers during the year ended 31 December
2017 was amounting to approximately
RMB192,000. As the sales of fiber optic inverters
were smaller than its sale return during the year
ended 31 December 2017, therefore the net sales
was reported as a negative figure.

8,974 7,953
7,892 10,994
(i) 2,447 (949)
(ii) (192) 733
19,121 18,731

UCE

() HEZZE—X"F+ZA=1+-—
AIEFERBBONE P
HBEBRRRENAARE
3,767,0007T ° B PR . 4 5 &
BHNHEERBE_T - F
+—ﬂ +—BLEFENIRE

5 BUHE FREEZRAB
%ﬁ(%o

(i HE-ZT—tF+-_A=1+—
BEFERBBRETERH
KA GBRRENRBARE
192,0007T ° B3 7 O 4 151 15 88
MEERBE-_ZT—tF+=
)EJ T—HLEFEPRER

5 BUHE FREERABH

o

-+ \ﬂll
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

8. REVENUE AND OPERATING SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)
(c)

Information about major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom
amounted to 10% or more of the total revenue, is

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

8. WERkEEIWEHR (&)
() BBXERFZEN

RAFTERF (BREPRBEI
= Z210%8 A £ ) 2 WasH 51 an

set out below: T
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT ARETFT
Customer A XEH 6,444 9,855
Customer B BEL 3,672 4,268
Customer C ZFR 2,000 2,208
Customer D 2ET 2,075 -

9. OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HtWA KmKkEIR
2017 2016
—E— & —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBETFIT
Amortisation of deferred government grants BT & B 3 950 2,478
Bank interest income RITH BUA 3 3
Gross rental income from transmitting station ~ Z§f A& U A £ 58 30 26
Reversal of impairment of trade and notes BOREWKEZEFRZERE
receivables 29 -
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain BN (&18), (34) 329
Others Hh 37 5
1,015 2,841
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. K EH

2017 2016
—E— & —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT AREFIT
Interest on bank borrowing RITEEFE 1,479 1,068
Interest on other borrowings HAinEEF S 1,154 -
Interest on amounts due to shareholders JERIREFIBEZF B 540 2,090
3,173 3,158

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging/

1. BRELAIE B

AEEZBRBAEBEENR, (FTA)

(crediting): LARIER:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETT
Auditors’ remuneration ZEE B 460 450
Cost of inventories sold HETFBEMAR 15,457 14,243
Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration): B IRA (BEEZE) :
Wages and salaries TERF® 15,679 17,587
Pension scheme contributions RRETEIMER 5,722 6,164
21,401 23,751
Depreciation of items of property, plant and ME BERRBEEBERNE
equipment 5,339 4,893
Amortisation of land use right + b {5 R A A £ 293 293
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain) EHEE (W) F8E 34 (329)
Share of loss of an associate PME—KEE AR ZEBE 123 307
Research and development costs W kAR 313 971
Impairment of investments in associates REERR 2R ERE 148 333
Impairment of inventories FERE 6,215 19,735
Impairment of due from a shareholder JE U — 37 P& B SR IE R E 593 -
Impairment of due from a FEW—RpiRgE N T RIE
former related company VoRIEL 47 -
(Reversal of impairment of)/impairment of JEWE ZER (BERE)/
trade receivables A (29) 1,606

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS

Details of directors’

and chief executive’s

(a)

12. EERARBREHFALIZHME

EERFETHRAEBZHME

FREZREBTRABZHM

remuneration for the year are as follows: AR UNNE
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFIT
Fees e 315 338

Other emoluments Hif &

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %4 - 28t R B W@ 282 183
Pension scheme contributions BRET A 47 29
644 550

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER
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e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

The emoluments of each director and the chief
executive, on a named basis, are set out below:

12. EERABEESFATZHE

(4&)

(a) EERTIETHAEBZHSE
(%)
LEERTBITRAS ZME IR
LI

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-S-tE+-AZ+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
He 2ER

ik BN BAGHEER Heas

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
M AREFTn ARETT ARETT ARETR
Executive directors: B1ES:
Guo Xu Zhi BiE 37 - - 37
Song Zheng Lai REK (i 4 5 - 9
Shen Jian i (i 3 5 2 10
Wang Ling Ling IRR (i) 3 6 2 11
Wang Wen Sheng ¢ () 44 128 43 215
Tian Qun Xu HER () - 138 - 138
Non-executive directors: FUTES:

Yuan Guo Liang RER 36 - - 36
Wu Bo RK (i) 3 - - 3
Long Yan XM (i) 3 - - 3
Ning Ling Ying? ERFE (i) 3 - - 3
Qie Hui Fang’ A Sl (i) 3 - - 3
Zhang Shao Hui ROE () 44 - - 44
Ni Guo Qiang’ (7B (i) 33 - - 33
Li Li Cai* HES (i 33 - - 33
Duan Zhong? Ba () 33 - - 33
Zhang Zhi Hong’ RGALY () 33 - - 33
315 282 47 644

The chief executive, Mr. Wang Wen Sheng, was also
a director and chairman of the Company. Following
the retirement of Mr. Wang Wen Sheng on 30
November 2017, Mr. Wang Wen Sheng ceased
to be the chairman of the board of directors of
the Company. Mr. Guo Xu Zhi was elected as the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company
with effect from 30 November 2017. Mr. Shen Jian
has been the acting chief executive officer of the
Company only from August 2016 to November
2017.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

12. EER L BREHFALTZEHE

(

==
Z)

(a) EBERFEFTHAEZHE

(%)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-AET-A=+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments
e 2ER
we HEH  RAGHEIHT MeBE
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
M AREFT AREFT AREFTT ARETR
Executive directors; BIEE:
Guo Xu Zhi BlEE 36 - - 36
Wang Wen Sheng E'¢ (i 43 143 29 220
Tian Qun Xu HER (i 26 40 - 66
Non-executive directors: FUTES:
Yuan Guo Liang RER 36 - - 36
Zhang Shao Hui ROE () 48 - - 48
Ni Guo Qiang* fR Bl (i) 36 - - 36
Li Li Caif Rgs (i 36 - - 36
Duan Zhong? Ba () 36 - - 36
Zhang Zhi Hong’ KA () 36 - - 36
338 183 29 550

The chief executive, Mr. Wang Wen Sheng, is also a
director and chairman of the Company.

# Independent non-executive directors
Notes:

(i)  These directors were resigned on 30 November
2017.

(i)  These directors were appointed on 30 November
2017.

TTHARREXERETRRART]
LEERERE-

# BUFATESF

EE

() ZEEER-T—LF+—A
=t+REAE-

() ZEEER-T—LF+—A
=+EEEL-

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of supervisors’ remuneration for the year are

12. EER L BREHFALTZEHE

)

¢

(b) EEE=HM

FREFZHMFBOT

as follows:
2017 2016
—E2—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT ARE T
Fees e - -
Other emoluments HEHENe
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 4% EBL R EWMEF 91 79
Pension scheme contributions ROREFEIE R 22 13
113 92
The emoluments of each supervisor, on a named BEEZHMRERZRFEI W T
basis, are set out below:
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE-Z-tE+-A=1-HLEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits contributions emoluments
¢ EZRK
B HttBR  BIRGHEMER MemEm
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi  AR%Fr AR®Ffn ARETn ARETxn
Han Xiao Ou BEE - 78 21 99
Lv Jun Li & (i) - - - -
sun Wei 3¢ (i) - 4 - 4
Xiang Hui i) (i) - 4 - 4
Dong Yong Hong EEbA (i - 5 1 6
Song Zhen Bao RE (i) - - - -
Yuan Shao Pu R (i) - - - -
- 91 22 113

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EERABEEFATIZHE
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&)
(b) SUPERVISORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) (b) EE=HM (2£)

For the year ended 31 December 2016
BE-F-AET-AZ+-HLEE

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and other scheme Total
Fees benefits  contributions  emoluments
o8 ZER

e AMBRN BRGERK  WeAE
Notes  RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIVB'000 RIMB'000
Wit ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETRT

Han Xiao Ou BB - 66 13 79

v Jun Li aEH (i) - 3 - 3

Sun Wei %R () - 5 - 5

Xiang Hui 1878 (i) - 5 - 5

- 79 13 92

Notes: TR

() These supervisors were resigned on 30 November () ZEEER-_ZTZ—+F+—A8
2017. =+ HEHE-

(i) These supervisors were appointed on 30 November iy ZEEEN-_Z—+F+—A8
2017. = +HEZE-

There was no arrangement under which a director, FAVBEMRNES FTBTHA

the chief executive or a supervisor waived or agreed B ESENREXRENET

to waive any remuneration during the year. I 2 &k

During the year, no emoluments were paid by FR AEFBTEBERES T8

the Group to a director, the chief executive or a THABSNEE MERME

supervisor as an inducement to join, or upon joining EAREMASINBERERR 2

the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. RN S BER E o

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER 9 5
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID 12. EEREEERSHFALTZEHE
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (4&)
(c) FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUAL () EBBEFAIZEHE
EMOLUMENTS
Three (2016: one) of the five highest paid KRR RERSHALTBIE=4
individuals of the Group were the directors whose (Z2—RF:—R)ESF - HM
emolument is set out in the above. For the year PHBER LN -BE_ZT—+
ended 31 December 2017, the remaining two F+-A=+—HILFE H&%
(2016: four) employees’ emoluments of the ME(ZE-—RF:OB)AR
Company were as follows: RIEBZHMET
2017 2016
—E—+t&E —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTFT AREFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind %% 2B R EWER 479 273
Pension scheme contributions RIRET B R - 55
479 328
The number of non-director and non-chief executive HMNR T GBI EFESNIETE
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell TBRABZERHREEABUT

within the following bands is as follows:

Number of employees

BEAH

2017 2016
—E—tF —T-RE
Nil — HK$1,000,000 T #%1,000,0007C 2 4
2 4
During the year, no emolument was paid by the FRN AEEVEAFEENETE
Group to the non-director and non-chief executive TEABZ & REE X E [ B
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or S EABEMASIMBREER 2

upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss SRS EERL e

of office.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FIBRIREX

2017 2016

S A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR  ARETR

Current PRC Enterprise income tax ENEAP B PRI B
~ Charge for the year —FRMER

Deferred tax BT IE

Total tax charge for the year FABBHIKRERE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in or
derived from Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016:RMB Nil). Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdiction in which the Group operates.

According to the applicable Enterprise Income Tax Law
of the PRC, the Company, which operates in the Taiyuan
Economic and Technology Development Zone, the PRC,
and which is registered as a New and High Technical
Enterprise, is entitled to a concessionary Enterprise
Income Tax rate of 15% over 3 years, beginning on
15 October 2015. For the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company was still entitled to a concessionary
Enterprise Income Tax rate of 15% (2016: 15%),).

BE_T—tFt-_HA=1—HL
FE -ARAEBRYEBEREELY
KB BB EAEFERTOEN
S ERE BB EHIELEE (=F
—NFARBERL) - HftitE 2k
ARA R N T iR 7N S B 48 i T P E )
EREBER 2 TR RRM

NN B E AR B K R 4O $ T B &
EEVEMAS RN BEFR
BEBACEMSHE AIR-F—Hh
F+ATHHBIFREARI5% 21
¥ HERME -HE_T—+F
+—A=+—HLEFE ARRNDE
B15% (ZE—RNF:15% ) 2%
FriSFiEBERM K-

m&ﬁﬁ%a&ﬁ&ﬁﬁmg 97
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled
to the loss for the year multiplied by applicable tax rate as

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

13. FiEHiBAxX ()

FRATE T A B E R EERIAE
R RGBT -

follows:
2017 2016
—E-+tF “E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥FTT ARBTF T
Loss before tax BB ATE R (28,576) (33,602)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of 15% IREARE15% (ZF—RE:
(2016: 15%) 15% ) 5t 8 2 Bk (4,286) (5,040
Tax effect of revenue not taxable for tax BERRWGE 2 R &
purposes (4) (49)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax ~ FAIMIRASZ ZREFE
purposes 1,050 3,251
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REABBER MK E 3,240 1,838

Fr S5 3

Income tax expenses

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has estimated
unused tax losses of approximately RMB19,208,000
(2016: RMB16,205,000) available for offset against future
profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The estimated unused tax losses
of approximately RMB19,208,195 at 31 December 2017
(2016: RMB16,205,300) is due to expire within one to
five years for offsetting against future taxable profits of
the Group in which the losses arise.

14. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on
the loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately RMB28,535,000 (2016: RMB33,596,000)
and 308,860,000 (2016: 308,860,000) shares in issue
during the year.

Diluted loss per share

There were no diluted potential ordinary shares in issue
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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T(ZZE—R"F: AR¥16,205,000
TL) o FR P 4B VA TRORI R 2R i FI SRR -
MW ERZEREEERERELR
HEE-RN-_T—+tF+=-A=+—
B B RBAREEBEOARE
19,208,195 0 (ZFE—RF: AR
16,205,300t ) R —ERFAE
W AN EBREECASE 2K
R P ER T m A o

BRER

BREXER
EREREEIIBIEARNGES AR
HEE D B A% AR ¥28,535,0007C
(ZZT—N%F: AR#33,596,0005T)
B 2 35 1T I 308,860,0000% ( —
T — ;X4 308,860,000/ ) 5t & -
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A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

DIVIDEND 15. K&
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any EETERRNEEZE S —+tF K=
dividend for each of the years ended 31 December 2017 T-RETZA=+—HIEFESRF
and 2016. AR B o
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. ¥ HWERRE
Medium
term
leasehold ~ Leasehold  Plant and Furniture Motor Construction
buildings improvements  machinery  and fixtures vehicles in progress Total
hEEE  RENE
e £6 HERHE HKARZE RE  EEIE @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ARETR AREFT ARETRL ARETR AREFT AREFTT ARETR
As at 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+ZA=1-A
COST wA:
At1 January 2017 R=F-t+5-A-H 66,314 34 45,335 1,806 408 16,093 129,990
Additions RE 2,492 - 657 29 - 688 133,856
At 31 December 2017 RIE—+E+-A=1t-B 68,806 34 45,992 1,835 408 16781 133,856
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ~ Z3fHE:
At 1 January 2017 R=F-+F-F-A 19,697 0 3057 1,806 408 - 52468
Provided during the year FRER 135 3 3,980 2 - - 5,339
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+E+-A=t-B 21,051 P 34,517 1,808 408 - 57,807
CARRYING AMOUNT: FEfE:
At 31 December 2017 RIZ—tETZA=t-0 4175 11 11,475 )] - 16,781 76,049
WA RSB B RBERAT

—E-tEF

#
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

16. W% BERKRE (E)

(continued)
Medium term
leasehold Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor  Construction
buildings ~ improvements  machinery fixtures vehicles in progress Total
hEEE  HENF
BF 2 BEREE GAREE fE ERIE @it
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT AREFTT ARETrT
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-E+-f=+-H
CosT: A
At 1 January 2016 RIE-RE-A-H 66,314 34 45,103 1,806 408 16071 129,736
Additions AE - - 232 - - Wi 254
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+-A=1-H 66,314 34 45,335 1,806 408 16,093 129,990
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION: ~ Z3tHr&:
At 1 January 2016 R-%-7%5-A-H 18,405 17 26,966 1,791 396 - 47575
Provided during the year EREE 1,292 3 3,571 15 1 - 4,893
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RE+-A=1-H 19,697 20 30,537 1,806 408 - 52,468
CARRYING AMOUNT: RHEE:
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RETZA=T-0 46617 14 14798 - - 16,093 71,522

As at 31 December 2017, certain plant and machinery
at carrying amount of approximately RMB537,000
(2016: RMB846,000) has been pledged to secure a bank
borrowing to the Group (note 29).

As at 31 December 2017, certain plant and machinery
and motor vehicles at carrying amount of approximately
RMB1,417,000 and RMB Nil respectively has been
pledged to secure the amount due to a shareholder (note

28).

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.

Annual Report 2017

R-_E—++E+—_A=+—H EF
BEEENAEANRKS37000T (=

— N AR¥846,0007T) 2 W E K&

KBEEERAMERARBIRTTEREZ
AR (F5E29) ©

RN—FE—++F+—-_A=+—H EF
BEEED DA ARE,417,00070

DARBZLZMENMEENTED
B AR DAE A B — {7 iR 3R 7R 7 5 3
(Pt 5E28) °
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17. LAND USE RIGHT

The Group's interest in land use right represents prepaid
operating lease payment and its net carrying amount is

analysed as follows:

17. T b fE A
AEBMBEAL T HEBEENIETE
QTS 2 B EDFE S AT 1
T:

2017 2016
—E—+tF “E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTT ARMFT
COST: Bk
At 1 January and 31 December KR—A—BR+ZA=+—H 14,634 14,634
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION: EHg: §o
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BEkt+-A=+—8H 3,514 3,221
Amortisation for the year FREH 293 293
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8 3,807 3,514
CARRYING AMOUNT: BRMEE -
At 31 December Rt+=-—A=+—8 10,827 11,120

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group’s land use
right located at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Taiyuan City, Shanxi
Province, the PRC has been pledged to a bank to secure a

bank borrowing to the Group (note 29).

RZE—+FRER_E—XRF+=A
=F+—B - AEBEMCRFPEILAESE K
BHEFH7A L HERED D
T—RFT EAASEER 2 —IA
|ITEE (MiFE29) °

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER
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18. i B 2 F]
Bk HBATEBLT

18. SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries at the end of the reporting RERE
period are as follows:

Percentage of
Registered/  equity interests
attributable to

Place of
incorporation/ Paid up

Company name registration share capital the Company Principal activities
SR/ EfiE,/ ERFMER
RRER TR BREX BEBEDL FEXK
Directly held:
EERH:
Shanxi Changcheng Huiging Environmental PRC RMB1,000,000/ 55% Wholesale of household
Technology Company Limited* RMB110,000¢ water purifiers

("Changcheng Huiging”)

WAEERREFRERMRERAF
([RHRES])

Taiyuan Changcheng Weiguang Weitong
Electronics Company Limited*
("Changcheng Weitong")

AREFAMAMBEFRRBERDA
(TREME])

Taiyuan Changcheng Feibo Optoelectronic
Technology Company Limited*
("Changcheng Feibo”)

AREHMAFBRERNKARRA
(TRH3EB])

FE AR1,000,000T
/ ANER#110,0007T*

PRC RMB15,000,000/
RMB NIL*

mE AR15,000,0005T
JAREZ T

PRC RMB20,000,000/
RMB NIL*

RE AR20,000,0007T
JAREZ

* The English names are for identification only

# The registered capital of Changcheng Huiqing is
RMB1,000,000 of which RMB110,000 has been paid by
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

55% K AFKeRHLE

100% Design, research,
development,
manufacture and
sales of optoelectronic
and chemical glass
products

100% &t H% - &t 1
% Wﬁ ERHE
YEMEREESR

100% Design, research,
development,
manufacture and
sales of fiber optics
products and water
purifiers

100% &7 FE - 2iE
&ﬁﬁ%fﬁﬁiéuu&x?7ﬁ
7=

B EZBEHEZR
EHESZHFMERAAARE
1,000,0007T * /A AR #110,000

TAEEER _ZT—tHFR_FT
—ANF+ZA=Z+—8&-
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SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18.

A Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo were
established in the PRC with limited liability on 21
June 2016. The registered capital of Changcheng
Weitong and Changcheng Feibo is RMB15,000,000 and
RMB20,000,000 respectively of which none has been
paid by the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.
Changcheng Weitong and Changcheng Feibo have not yet
started operation for the year ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

The Group had no subsidiary which has material non-
controlling interests for the year ended 31 December
2017 and 2016.

MEAT (&)

" ERMBLERERFER =2 —XRF
NAZtT—BERBEKZIAEERA
A e RIRMEB R BRI IEFAEME R
7 Bl A A R #15,000,0007T 2 A R
#20,000,0007T ' AEER T —+
FZE-REt+A=+—BfE
AT R A AN o R AR K R IE
BREBEEZFT—tFRZF R F
+Z A=+ R LEFENERBL

HE-_Z—+FR-_F—X~F+=A
—t+—BHULtEFE AEETEASEX
JEIE R 2B AT -

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE QT 2R
2017 2016
—E—tF -y
RMB’000 RMB'000
AT ARBFT

Unlisted investments in PRC R ELETIRE

Share of net assets [EIGEEFE 2,685 2,808
Due from associates JE WL Bk 1\ ) ZRIB 767 575
3,452 3,383
Impairment of investments in associates REE AR 2 RERE (3,285) (3,137)
167 246

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

19. Rt N T iR (&)

Particulars of the associates at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

Percentage of

g AR T

R EHRZE

Place of Registered/  equity interests
incorporation/ Paid up  attributable to
Company name registration share capital the Company Principal activities
SR/ SRR ERFMER
RRER TR BREX REBSL TEER
Shanxi Huayuan Transport Optical Technology PRC RMB 11,000,000/ 36.36% Development of fibre

and Engineering Company Limited* RMB4,000,000

("Huayuan Transport”)

WAZEELIBLERMIEER AT FE ARE11,000,0007T

E3:-23:0) /N ¥4,000,0007
Taiyuan Changcheng Luojiguang Optical PRC RMB2,000,000/
Technology Company Limited* RMB420,000¢

("Changcheng Luojiguang”)

AERHEENERBEERAT mE AR2,000,0007,/

(TRBEEL]) AR #420,0007T%

Taiyuan Weiguang Feifan Education PRC RMB100,000/
Management Consultant Company RMB NIL
Limited*

("Weiguang Feifan”)

mE  AR100,0007T,/
AREZ T

ARGRFEAHBEREATRAA
(T#X3ER])

* The English names are for identification only
# The registered capital of Changcheng Luojiguang is

RMB2,000,000 of which RMB420,000 has been paid by
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and 2016.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

36.36%

35.00%

35.00%

49.00%

49.00%

optic intelligent
transport system
business in the PRC

REBERE AN ES
EREB R

Manufacturing,
processing, research
and development and
sales of electronic
components
and optical
subcomponents

BEFTHRNETEMN
BAE T 3R
HE

Education information
consultation,
organizing cultural
and artistic exchange
activities, housing
lease

HEEREA AR
REMIXREY FE
HE

R B EEHER

EREZ X2 AMERAABARE
2,000,0007T - A A R #420,000
TAEBER -_ZT—+FR_-_F
—RNETA=+—B#M-
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

A

Weiguang Feifan was established in the PRC with limited
liability on 8 November 2017. The registered capital of
Weiguang Feifan is RMB100,000 of which none has been
paid by the Group as at 31 December 2017.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, interest-
free and not repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group recognised
impairment losses of approximately RMB3,285,000
(2016: RMB3,137,000) in respect of the interest in the
associates mainly due to uncertainties surrounding the
industry in which the associate operates.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method
in these consolidated financial statements and the
associates are not considered to be individually material
to the Group.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s
share of the amounts of all individually immaterial
associates that are accounted for using the equity
method.

19. REtE N T 2R (&)

BHIENLBER-_ZE—F+—AN
HRAPBIKZ 2 BRAGE - HEHIE
RzaMEsAAR100,0007T
Hpp—Z2—+F+=—A=+—H
REEIWES FER SRR

FEUCHE 2 R BIFADEER B
BER—FANEE-

A—E—+F+-_A=+—H K&
EphEE N A 2 EaERBEEIRL
AR #3,285,0000C (ZZF—7~"F: A
R#3,137,00000) » EEHRZ S
ENRNEZITXEINTHBAR
ESIESE

g QR EAEREAR LR MBS
BERAAR BB ZE QB THAESE
Pl AEEMEBEKN-

TRIRAEBOEFAERTE X
RTEAMBENFINERE MRS
MR ESAAIR

2017 2016
—E—tf —T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFR AREFT
At 31 December n+—-—A=+—H

Carrying amounts of interests BRiREE 167 246

Year ended 31 December BE+-_A=+—BLLFE
Loss from continuing operations FELEBE 123 307
Other comprehensive loss Hin 2 HEEE - -
Total comprehensive loss FPHEBRERE 123 307

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share
of results of the associate Huayuan Transport because
the share of losses of the associate exceeded the Group’s
interest in the associate. As at 31 December 2017, the
cumulatively unrecognised share of losses of the associate
is approximately RMB1,816,000 (2016: RMB1,714,000).

AR ZHERRIEEBRBEARNES
REE AR ERR BB AR
EEERIEERDMZBERNE 2%
BN —_E—+tF+=-_A=+—8"
2 REZRN DB ERREBLOA
R#1,816,0000T (ZE—RF: AR
#1,714,0007T ) °

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER
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20. INVENTORIES 20. 7€
2017 2016
—E—tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMF ARETT
Raw materials R E 1,865 1,199
Work in progress EEH 9,845 11,561
Finished goods B 1,807 4,464
13,517 17,224
21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. ERESRIRAREE

2017 2016
—E—tF TE-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETFTT AREFT
Trade receivables FEM 8 5 IR 13,042 13,888
Notes receivables fEM Z & - 540
Less: impairment of trade receivables W EWE ZRFORE (2,453) (2,482)
10,589 11,946
An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of RIEEER EWEZEFIRERE

the reporting period, based on the invoice date and net HERINBGEBEE ZESB ST :

of provisions, is as follows:

2017 2016
—E-tF ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT ARETT

Within 90 days 90H A 7,835 6,852
91 to 180 days 912180H 2,146 2,900
181 to 365 days 1812365H 608 1,654

10,589 11,406
The trading terms with customers are largely on credit. %g%g)zzg%ﬂ%fng;%gﬁgﬁﬁ
The credit period is generally 90 days (2016: 90 days). Ko EEH—#A908 (=T — <
The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding #£:90H) - $% EfES %\J;EJ_I&@Z
receivables and has credit control policy in place to JrE Ui BR TE 30 FRELBR BRI I BUR - DA R
minimise its credit risk. The Group has significant EREKEERB ARAEE RS
concentration of credit risk arising from its ordinary EAYE /) FHERE B R YR
course of business due to its relatively small customer BREEERBSEET - BE &
bases. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by RIEREEEBTHEN -ENE Sk
management. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing. AR A .

1 06 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES 21. ERESRIAKREE (&)
(continued)
The movements in impairment of trade receivables are as EWE SRR ZBEZBNT
follows:
2017 2016
—E—+E ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FR AREFT
At 1 January n—H—8 2,482 876
Impairment losses recognised EHRAREERE - 1,606
Reversal of impairment losses recognised BEEmAREEER (29) -
At 31 December Nt=-A=+—H 2,453 2,482

Included in the above impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables of
approximately RMB2,453,000 (2016: RMB2,482,000).
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to
customers that were in financial difficulties and only a
portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables that are not

L EWE SEFRERE —EHE
FIBECEBEZRABHEROAR
#2,453,0007C (ZZE—RF: AR
2,482,0007T ) ° #Z B @ BRI E 2 FE UL
EoRFEBUBRE s TP HER -
T8 B 3% 55 B AR BR SRME AT 3B W @] - R
SEVYERZEESRFTETENERD
SR ERH b IR FHE BRI HE it

FEIAG S MR S SR B8 RE 2 IEULE 5

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is R ZBRE DT
as follows:

2017 2016
—E—tf —TE-RE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AREFT
Neither past due nor impaired I #5808 ROR(E 7,835 6,852
Less than 9 months past due B RofE A 2,754 4,554
10,589 11,406

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a number of independent customers for whom
there were no recent history of default.

I J8 H KRB 2 FEUR AR R 2 23T
MY EHBRERCEIBILEFE

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
—E-LEER
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21. TRADE AND NOTES RECEIVABLES
(continued)

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Directors are of the opinion that no impairment loss
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

22. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

Details of the prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are as follows:

BE—_FT—+tF+-_H=1T—HIFE

21. EWESZRARER (&)

BHMERRE 2 RU SRR T EE T
BURFAMR ZFEFEAKHERA
BRIEFMEACE REBELR
EERRBARZESERERREE
B RARGERERYEEREE
BRABRRIDRAE R 28R E -

22. ANRE RERHE MBI
|
BN IA - RS R E Al U IA 2 5F
BT

2017 2016

—E-tF —TE-RE

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBE T AREFT

Prepayments Ta{tFE 872 208
Deposits and other receivables & MOE e FE 1,430 217
2,302 425

23. AMOUNT DUE FROM A SHAREHOLDER

Details of the amount due from a shareholder is set out

23. B — U RRFKIE
A — (I IR RRAR R B HE I T -

below:
Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year 2017 2016
FRAER
Name =L REESH —E—tF —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARETFTT AREFT
Taiyuan Tanghai Automatic AREBEBHEFER
Control Company Limited NSEQWNGY-3:3D)
("Taiyuan Tanghai”) 593 - 593

The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017

ZERHEABIER  RERARE
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COMPANY

Details of the amount due from a former related
company is set out below:

24. B —RAIBBE QR FIA

M — 2R A1 B A OB 2 SE BL5)
-

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year 2017 2016
FRAE®
Name £8 REESLE —E—tF —ET-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBETFTT AREFT
Shanxi Jindi Yucheng Medical LI 75 8% tth ¥4 X B 2 5%
Equipments Company Limited AR AT
(“Shanxi Jindi") (MuEskH]) 4,283 - 4,283

Shanxi Jindi (formerly known as A J& % = 8 & &R 15
B AFA (transliterated as “Taiyuan Huamei Medical
Equipments Company Limited”)) is a former subsidiary
of Taiyuan Changcheng Optics Electronics Industrial
Corporation, a substantial shareholder of the Company.
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand.

PR (AT K REXBERER
RAF)BARA —RETERRAR
RREAEFIERBZAMBLRA-
% UG IR B 2 B MBRE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. e RBEESEEIEH
2017 2016
—B—t5 —E-XE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREFIT
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEHEEH 1,617 373

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in RMB
and placed with banks in the PRC and held in hand.

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for foreign
currencies through banks that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

RBEMR AEEZHREMAES
BEEETEAARBREMAFHN
B ZRIRT R FHEFR

ARBAFFAEHLBRINENE
¥ RIEPBEMINEE BIRA AL
AR EREETTINER T 2
RITUARE L HBINE

RIRTZREBRBRTEHRITER
MR AR TF BN R ERERA B - SR1T AR
TFHNMEB R 4F M BOL I 852 KO0 8%
ZHRTT -

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26. BNHEZKRM
The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice ENESRFBBEEZEHZRRD
date, is as follows: Moo :
2017 2016
—E-tF A
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARETT

0 to 90 days 0£90H 664 1,529
91 to 180 days 912180H - 613
181 to 365 days 181£365H - 3,119
Over 365 days BiB365H 10,809 7,022
11,473 12,283
27. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 27. Bt REREMENFIE
2017 2016
—E—+t& —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARETTT

Accrued salaries and other payables JE &t 2 B N ELAth 8 < 2R I8 44,994 40,204
Accrued expenses FERTR 4,030 2,691
Receipt in advance B HIE 5,800 5,591
Others Hy 750 2,436
55,574 50,922
28. AMOUNTS DUE TO SHAREHOLDERS 28. BN RERME
The advances of RMB1,300,000 are pledged by certain FE A% R 32018 A R #51,300,0000T B
plant and machinery and motor vehicles, interest-bearing = THE NM#es A RSB /B 5t
and repayable on demand. The remaining balances are BHEAEREREE -#BEAEER.
unsecured, interest-bearing and repayable on demand. pERAERERES-
29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. SRITRHEMEBE
2017 2016
—E—tF “T—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARETT

Bank borrowing RITEE 13,479 13,920
Other borrowings Hirfg & 19,981 -
33,460 13,920

1 1 0 Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

29. RITRHEMBE (&)

(continued)

At 31 December 2017 and 2016, the bank and other RZE—+FRN_ZEE—XNE+_H
borrowings was due for repayment as follows: =+—H HHEEEEZRITREM
BEWT :
2017 2016
—E—t& —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMFT AREF T
The bank and other borrowings that containa &8 BZERKE R KT Z BT
repayable on demand clause: REMEE:
Current portion of term loan due for repayment BB —FRNEBEZ FHE
within one year R ANEE D 33,460 13,920
The guarantees and securities of the bank and other REREFRFIREMEE 2 ER
borrowings at the end of each reporting period are as follows: RERET :
2017 2016
“E2-+tF —T-REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFTT AREF T
Secured A 27,844 13,920
Unsecured BB ER 5,616 -
33,460 13,920
Note: i a%:

The amount is (1) secured by the Group’s land use right located
at No. 7, Dianzi Street, Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the PRC
(note 17); (2) certain plant and machinery (note 16) and (3)
guaranteed by a shareholder (2016: land use right and plant and
machinery).

ZHEHOANEECRPELTEE KR
mEFHLR 2 L EHBE (HE17)
QFETHE kR (F1TE‘I16)T’FT£ET$&(3)
—BRREER (ZF—AF LHER
HENRE s

WA RBMEEMROBERD A
“E-LEER
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29. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 29. BITREMMEE (&)
(continued)
The average effective interest rates at the end of each

reporting period were as follows:

RERERRZFHERMEOT -

2017 2016

—E—+E TE-RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®FT ARE T

Interest bearing 28,050 13.920
Interest-free 5,410 -
33,460 13,920

Note: &t

ZHBRNF435% = 30% (ZF—X
FFEFEE52% £7.35% ) 2 FFE;

The amount is interest bearing at a range from 4.35% to 30%
p.a. (2016: 6.52% to 7.35% p.a.).

Bo
30. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS 30. EZEBSER
2017 2016
—E—+tH ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREF T
COST: AN
At 1 January n—A—H 25,033 23,505
Additions NE 190 1,528
At 31 December Nt =—A=1+—8H 25,223 25,033
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION REtE
At 1 January n—A—H 13,840 11,362
Amortisation for the year FREH 950 2,478
At 31 December RNt=—A=1+—H 14,790 13,840
CARRYING AMOUNT: BRMEIE
At 31 December At=—A=1+—H 10,433 11,193

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mEMBRRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z_—FT—+F+-_H=1+T—HIFE

31. SHARE CAPITAL 31. &
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Authorised, issued and fully paid: EECBRETRBMERR:
198,860,000 (2016: 198,860,000) domestic 198,860,0000% (=& —7<
shares of RMB0.10 each F 1 198,860,000/% ) FIRE
BEARKI0TZANER 19,886 19,886
110,000,000 (2016: 110,000,000) 110,000,000/ (=& —7<
H shares of RMBO0.10 each £ :110,000,0008% ) &AXE
BEARE010TTZHE 11,000 11,000
30,886 30,886

32.

Except for the currency in which dividends are paid and
the restrictions as to whether the shareholders can be the
PRC investors or foreign investors, domestic shares and
H shares rank pari passu with each other.

RESERVES
Group

(i)

(i)

Capital surplus

The capital surplus of the Group represents the
excess of the issue price over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued at a premium.

Statutory surplus reserve

The Company’s articles of association require the
appropriation of 10% of the Company’s profit
after tax each year to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the Company’s
registered capital. According to the provisions of
the Company’s articles of association, in normal
circumstances, the statutory surplus reserve shall
only be used for making up losses, capitalisation
into share capital and expansion of the Company’s
production and operations. For the capitalisation of
the statutory surplus reserve into share capital, the
remaining amount of such reserve shall not be less
than 25% of the registered capital.

32.

BRXNBBAZ S R AR RE
RPBEREESBRINIEEFR

5h MERRHEE B EAR S -

i

A

() BxXEH
AN B AR B AR AT R A
HERITOARRRN 2 EEZ
EHE-

(i) ZEBERFHE

AATIMEBERMRETE
FHRRBARNABRBERN 2
10%EXTEHBRHE BEEEAT
B R R E D AN R FEM AR
R2Z250%  RIBEAQEEEGER
MAETE REFEBRT AT
BHFHEETRARBEER &
FER AR KA AN R 2 A R4S
o AT RMBAEBENL AR
s BREREBIHBBIZIRN
AR AR 2 25% ©

WA RBMEEMROBERD A
“E-LEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e ERRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

32. RESERVES (continued)
Company

32. & (&)

The amounts of the Company’s reserves and the
movements therein for the year ended 31 December

ZNNE

ARABRBE_ZE—LtF+-A
St HLEFEZHREREES S

2017 are as follows: BT
Statutory
Capital surplus Accumulated
surplus reserve losses Total
EER
EXBH wE  RAIER At
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFTT AREFT AREFT
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF
—H—8 18,561 11,853 (8,774) 21,640
Total comprehensive loss A2 EER
for the year e - - (33,587) (33,587)
At 31 December 2016 and R=ZZE—XF+=A
1 January 2017 =+—HRK
—T—+F
—HA—H 18,561 11,853 (42,361) (11,947)
Total comprehensive loss FRZEEBE
for the year e - - (28,881) (28,881)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+tF+=A
=+—H 18,561 11,853 (71,242) (40,828)

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 #Z_—FT—+F+-_H=1+T—HIFE

33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a)

(b)

33. GERERERMEE

Changes in liabilities arising from financing () MEFHELEZEGBZEDH
activities
The following table shows the Group’s changes in TRINRAFERAREEREE
liabilities arising from financing activities during the BELX ABEZE
year:
Amounts Bank and Total liabilities
due to other from financing
shareholders borrowings activities
RITR MEFEZ
PE R RFKIE HittfE & EEAH
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT AREF T
At 1 January 2017 RZT—+F
—H—H 16,490 13,920 30,410
Change in cash flows He# 2,290 18,491 20,781
Non-cash changes FREE
— Interest charges —-MEEHR - 1,049 1,049
- Set off (Note 33b) — 8K (H7aE33b) (5,000) - (5,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+ZA=+—8H 13,780 33,460 47,240
Major non-cash transaction (b) FEXRERS

During the year, the amount due from a former
related company of RMB5,000,000 was adopted
to offset the amount due to shareholders of
RMBS5,000,000.

RAFER BE—RABEER
A IE A R #5,000,0007T 2 £
AN EHEENBCRFIEARE
5,000,0007T °

WA RBMEEMROBERD A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z—FT—+F+-_HA=+—HIFE

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group’'s capital commitments at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

34, EXEIE
AEMRBEBR T BARRENT :

2017 2016
= —TRF
RMB’000 RMB000

AR®FT ARETT

Contracted, but not provided for EEEMNEICES 3
— Buildings -EF 6,611 7,134
Contracted contribution to subsidiaries BEENEIE R EHEIEY
(Note 18) (BtzE18) 35,440 35,440
Contracted contribution to associates [ B & N BT ERT SV E B
(Note 19) (Ktzt19) 329 280
42,380 42,854

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a) Key management compensation

The compensation of key management personnel
is disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

(b) Sales to an associate of approximately
RMB2,075,000 (2016: RMB592,000) were credited
to the profit or loss for the year included under
turnover.

Shanxi Changcheng Microlight Equipment Co. Ltd.
Annual Report 2017
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37.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BERRWME

For the year ended 31 December 2017 B Z_—F—+F+-_H=1+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY AS AT 31 DECEMBER

RtT-ZA=+—HWERF
B # AR 3R

36.

2017 2016
—E—t#F ZE-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBE R 76,047 77,520
Land use right + 0 {FE 10,827 11,120
Interests in associates N NG - 167 246
87,041 88,886
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 13,481 17,187
Trade receivables FEW B 5 IR 10,580 11,937
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FB{TEIE - &4 & H b fEUL R I8 2,252 403
Amount due from a shareholder JE Ut — i fR 3R IR - 593
Amount due from a former related company ~ JEU—KBEIEE A B FHIE - 4,283
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEEHR 750 275
27,063 34,678
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables 8 5 RR 11,461 12,253
Accruals and other payables JE AT TN IE I HLth & < 5018 55,418 48,931
Amount due to shareholders J& 1< B 3R 3UE 13,780 16,490
Amount due to a subsidiary JER —ZKM B A RIIA - 1,838
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 32,954 13,920
113,613 93,432
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEETE (86,550) (58,754)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥EZERABHEE 491 30,132
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES *RBERE
Deferred government grants EETR T & Bh 10,433 11,193
10,433 11,193
NET (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS (BfE) BEFHE (9,942) 18,939
EQUITY R
Share capital &% 30,886 30,886
Reserves B (40,828) (11,947)
TOTAL EQUITY BEmiEE (9,942) 18,939

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. EMBRRKR

These consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the
company on 28 August 2018.

feERA

IaN=]

MBEHEREN_ZE—-NFN

AZ+tN\BERRREFTGHEREK
T

WA RBMKEMROBRD A
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Five-Year Financial Summary

EIFEMBRE

TRPAREREBEE _—_T—tF+=
A=T—RLAEFEZEEZESE

The following is a summary of the audited results and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group for the five years ended 31

December 2017. LEEHAE-
Year ended 31 December
+tZA=t+—-HLEE
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—E—tf —E-RF ZT—hF —T—HF —ZT—=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BY¥FT B¥TIT BEFTT BT BEFIL
RESULTS E4
Revenue Wz 19,121 18,731 43,282 51,466 62,758
Operating loss BB (25,403) (30,444) (13,574) (9,497) (1,163)
Finance costs BB (3,173) (3,158) (1,323) (1,835) (1,067)
Loss before tax BR % A B 1B (28,576) (33,602) (14,897) (11,332) (2,230)
Income tax expense FrisHiA X - - - - -
Loss for the year FREE (28,576) (33,602) (14,897) (11,332) (2,230)
Attributable to: AT FEAL
Owners of the Company  RAREAF A (28,535) (33,596) (14,855) (11,306) (2,230)
Non-controlling interests R E R (41) (6) (42) (26) -
(28,576) (33,602) (14,897) (11,332) (2,230)
At 31 December
R+t=-A=+-8H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
—B-tF ZTF ZFT-RF ZF-MmF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BETFT B¥FT  BETT  EEFT  BETI
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EBRE&E
Total assets BEBE 115,068 123,732 139,824 142,802 159,010
Total liabilities BEEE (124,720)  (104,808) (87,298) (75,379) (80,345)
Non-controlling interests ~ 3E¥R AR 2% 25 (16) (22) (64) -
Total equity attributable to A2 @)% A A
owners of the Company AR (9,627) 18,908 52,504 67,359 78,665
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